On the basis of Article 150 point 3), Article 152 point 5), Article 153 point 4), Article 166 point 2) and Articles 167, 168 and 265 of Air Transport Law ("Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia", No. 73/10),

The Management Board of the Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia adopts

REGULATION ON AIRWORTHINESS AND ENVIRONMENTAL CERTIFICATION OF AIRCRAFT AND RELATED PRODUCTS, PARTS AND APPLIANCES AND ON ISSUE OF LICENSES FOR TECHNICAL OPERATIONS TO DESIGN AND PRODUCTION ORGANISATIONS

Objective

Article 1

This Regulation lays down requirements for: the airworthiness and environmental certification of products, parts and appliances, the issuance of type-certificates, restricted type-certificates and changes to those certificates, the issuance of certificates of airworthiness, restricted certificates of airworthiness, permits to fly and authorised release certificates, the issuance of repair design approvals, the showing of compliance with environmental protection requirements, the issuance of noise certificates, the identification of products, parts and appliances, the certification of certain parts and appliances, the certification of design and production organisations and the issuance of airworthiness directives.

This Regulation shall not be applicable for aircraft specified in the Annex II of the Regulation (EC) No 216/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 February 2008 on common rules in the field of civil aviation and establishing a European Aviation Safety Agency, and repealing Council Directive 91/670/EEC, Regulation (EC) No 1592/2002 and Directive 2004/36/EC.

Transposition of the Commission Regulation (EU) No 1702/2003 Article 2

1. By this Regulation, adapting to the legislation of the Republic of Serbia, shall be transposed the Commission Regulation 1702/2003 of 24 September 2003 laying down implementing rules for the airworthiness and environmental certification of aircraft and related products, parts and appliances, as well as for the certification of design and production organisations.

2. The consolidated text of the Commission Regulation (EU) No 1702/2003 developed by the Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia shall be transposed and include: the Commission Regulation 1702/2003 of 24 September 2003, the Commission Regulation 381/2005 of 7 March 2005, the Commission Regulation 706/2006 of 8 May 2006, the Commission Regulation 335/2007 of 28 March 2007, the Commission Regulation 375/2007 of 30 March 2007, the Commission Regulation 1057/2008 of 27 October 2008 and the Commission Regulation (EU) No 1194/2009 of 30 November 2009.

3. The consolidated text of the Commission Regulation (EU) No 1702/2003 is presented in Annex to this Regulation.

Definitions

Article 3

- 1. Certain terms that are used in this Regulation have following meanings:
 - 1) *ECAA Agreement* is Multilateral Agreement between the European Community and its Member States, the Republic of Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, the Republic of Bulgaria, the Republic of Croatia, the Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, the Republic of Iceland, the Republic of Montenegro, the Kingdom of Norway, Romania, the Republic of Serbia and the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (pursuant to UN Security Council Resolution 1244 of 10 June 1999) on the Establishment of a European Common Aviation Area;
 - 2) Agency or EASA is the European Aviation Safety Agency;
 - 3) Basic Regulation that is used in the Annex to this Regulation is the Regulation (EC) No 216/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 February 2008 on common rules in the field of civil aviation and establishing a European Aviation Safety Agency, and repealing Council Directive 91/670/EEC, Regulation (EC) No 1592/2002 and Directive 2004/36/EC;
 - Chicago Convention that is used in Annex to this Regulation is the Convention on International Civil Aviation and Annexes to the Convention, signed at Chicago, on 7 December 1944;
 - 5) The terms *Community, Community regulations* and *Member State* used in Annex to this Regulation shall be interpreted according to Annex II (2 and 3) to the ECAA Agreement and appropriate provisions of the Treaty of Lisbon which amends the Treaty on European Union and the Treaty establishing the European Community;
 - 6) *Approved organisation* is the organization to which was issued the approval for technical operations;
 - 7) *Production organisation approval* and *design organisation approval* are approvals for technical operations that shall be issued to the production organisation and the design organisation;
 - 8) *Noise certificate* is the certificate of generated noise.

Acceptable Means of Compliance and Guidance Material

Article 4

In the Republic of Serbia shall be directly applied the Acceptable Means of Compliance-AMC and Guidance Material-GM of the Part 21 for the airworthiness and environmental certification of aircraft and related products, parts and appliances, as well as for the certification of design and production organisations, pubblished on the website of the Agency.

Transitional Provisions

Article 5

The documents on type and noise of the aircraft registered in the Aircraft Register of the Republic of Serbia before the entry into force of this Regulation, that are not compliant with this Regulation, shall remain valid for a maximum of 12 months following the day of the entry into force of this Regulation.

Termination of validity of other regulation

Article 6

With the entry into force of this Regulation, the Regulation on the certification and airworthiness of aircraft and on the issuance of approvals to the production and design organisations ("Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia", No. 14/10), cease to be valid.

Entry into force

Article 7

This Regulation shall enter into force on the eighth day following its publication in the "Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia".

No. 1/0-01-0004/2010-0008

Belgrade, 21 December 2010

Management Board

President

Milutin MRKONJIC

COMMISSION REGULATION (EC) No 1702/2003 of 24 September 2003 laying down implementing rules for the airworthiness and environmental certification of aircraft and related products, parts and appliances, as well as for the certification of design and production organisations

Scope and definitions

Article 1

1. This Regulation lays down, in accordance with Article5(4) and 6(3) of the basic Regulation, common technical requirements and administrative procedures for the airworthiness and environmental certification of products, parts and appliances specifying:

(a) the issue of type-certificates, restricted type-certificates, supplemental type-certificates and changes to those certificates;

(b) the issue of certificates of airworthiness, restricted certificates of airworthiness, permits to

fly and authorised release certificates;

(c) the issue of repair design approvals;

(d) the showing of compliance with environmental protection requirements;

(e) the issue of noise certificates;

(f) the identification of products, parts and appliances;

(g) the certification of certain parts and appliances;

(h) the certification of design and production organisations;

(i) the issue of airworthiness directives.

2. For the purpose of this Regulation, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) 'JAA' means the 'Joint Aviation Authorities'.

(b) 'JAR' means 'Joint Aviation Requirements'.

(c) 'Part 21' means the requirements and procedures for the certification of aircraft and related products, parts and appliances, and of design and production organisations annexed to this Regulation.

(d) 'Part M' means the applicable continuing airworthiness requirements adopted in pursuance to the basic Regulation.

(e) 'principal place of business' means the head office or registered office of the undertaking within which the principal financial functions and operational control of the activities referred to in this Regulation are exercised;

(f) 'article' means any part and appliance to be used on civil aircraft;

(g) 'ETSO' means European Technical Standard Order. The European Technical Standard Order is a detailed airworthiness specification issued by the European Aviation Safety Agency (the 'Agency') to ensure compliance with the requirements of this Regulation as a minimum performance standard for specified articles;

(h) 'EPA' means European Part Approval. European Part Approval of an article means the article has been produced in accordance with approved design data not belonging to the type-certificate holder of the related product, except for ETSO articles.

Products, parts and appliances certification *Article 2*

1. Products, parts and appliances shall be issued certificates as specified in Part 21.

2. By way of derogation from paragraph 1, aircraft, including any installed product, part and appliance, which are not registered in a Member State shall be exempted from the provisions of Subparts H and I of Part 21. They shall also be exempted from the provisions of Subpart P of Annex I (Part 21) except when aircraft identification marks are prescribed by a Member State.

3. Where reference is made in the Annex (Part 21) to apply and/or to comply with the provisions of Annex I (Part M) to Commission Regulation (EC) No 2042/2003 and a Member State has elected, pursuant to Article 7(3)(a) and (b) of that Regulation, not to apply that Part until 28 September 2008, the relevant national rules shall apply instead until that date.

Continued validity of type-certificates and related certificates of airworthiness

Article 2a

1. With regard to products which had a type-certificate, or a document allowing the issuing of a certificate of airworthiness, issued before 28 September 2003 by a Member State, the following provisions shall apply:

(a) Such a product shall be deemed to have a type-certificate issued in accordance with this Regulation when:

(i) its type-certification basis is:

— the JAA type-certification basis, for products thathave been certificated under JAA procedures, as defined in their JAA data sheet; or

— for other products, the type-certification basis as defined in the type-certificate data sheet of the State of design, if that State of design is:

— a Member State, unless the Agency determines, taking into account, in particular, airworthiness codes used and service experience, that such type-certification basis does not provide for a level of safety equivalent to that required by the basic Regulation and this Regulation; or

— a State with which a Member State has concluded a bilateral airworthiness agreement or similar arrangement under which such products have been certificated on the basis of that State of design airworthiness codes, unless the Agency determines that such airworthiness codes or service experience or the safety system of that State of design do not provide for a level of safety equivalent to that required by the basic Regulation and this Regulation;

The Agency shall make a first evaluation of the implication of these two above provisions in view of producing an opinion to the Commission including possible amendments to the present Regulation.

(ii) the environmental protection requirements are those laid down in Annex 16 to the Chicago Convention, as applicable to the product;

(iii) the applicable airworthiness directives are those of the State of design.

(b) The design of an individual aircraft, which is on the register of a Member State before 28 September 2003, shall be deemed to have been approved in accordance with this Regulation when:

(i) its basic type design is part of a type-certificate referred to in paragraph (a);

(ii) all changes to this basic type design, which are not under the responsibility of the typecertificate holder, have been approved; and (iii) the airworthiness directives issued or adopted by the Member State of registry before 28 September 2003 are complied with, including any variations to the airworthiness directives of the State of design agreed by the Member State of registry.

(c) The Agency shall determine the type-certificate of the products not meeting paragraph (a) before 28 March 2007.

(d) The Agency shall determine the type-certificate data sheet for noise for all products covered by paragraph (a) before 28 March 2007. Until such determination, Member States may continue to issue noise certificates in accordance with applicable national regulations.

2. With regard to products for which a type-certification process is proceeding through the JAA or a Member State on 28 September 2003:

(a) if a product is under certification by several Member States, the most advanced project shall be used as the reference;

(b) 21A.15(a), (b) and (c) of Part 21 shall not apply;

(c) by way of derogation from 21A.17(a) of Part 21, the typecertification basis shall be that established by the JAA or, where applicable, the Member State at the date of application for the approval;

(d) compliance findings made under JAA or Member State procedures shall be deemed to have been made by the Agency for the purpose of complying with 21A.20(a) and (b) of Part 21;

3. With regard to products that have a national type-certificate, or equivalent, and for which the approval process of a change carried out by a Member State is not finalised at the time when the type-certificate is determined in accordance with this Regulation:

(a) if an approval process is being carried out by several Member States, the most advanced project shall be used as the reference;

(b) 21A.93 of Part 21 shall not apply;

(c) the applicable type-certification basis shall be that established by the JAA or, where applicable, the Member State at the date of application for the approval of change;

(d) compliance findings made under JAA or Member State procedures shall be deemed to have been made by the Agency for the purpose of complying with 21A.103(a)(2) and (b) of Part 21.

4. With regard to products that have a national type-certificate, or equivalent, and for which the approval process of a major repair design carried out by a Member State is not finalised at the time when the type-certificate is determined in accordance with this Regulation, compliance findings made under JAA or Member State procedures shall be deemed to have been made by the Agency for the purpose of complying with 21A.433(a) of Part 21.

5. A certificate of airworthiness issued by a Member State attesting conformity with a typecertificate determined in accordance with point 1 shall be deemed to comply with this Regulation.

Continued validity of supplemental type-certificates

Article 2b

1. With regard to supplemental type-certificates issued by a Member State under JAA procedures or applicable national procedures and with regard to changes to products proposed by persons other than the type-certificate holder of the product, which were approved by a Member State under applicable national procedures, if the supplemental type-certificate, or

change, was valid on 28 September 2003, the supplemental type-certificate, or change shall be deemed to have been issued under this Regulation.

2. With regard to supplemental type-certificates for which a certification process was being carried out by a Member State on 28 September 2003 under applicable JAA supplemental type-certificate procedures and with regard to major changes to products, proposed by persons other than the type-certificate holder of the product, for which a certification process was being carried out by a Member State on 28 September 2003 under applicable national procedures, the following shall apply:

(a) if a certification process was being carried out by several Member States, the most advanced project shall be used as the reference;

(b) point 21.A.113 (a) and (b) of Part 21 shall not apply;

(c) the applicable certification basis shall be that established by the JAA or, where applicable, the Member State at the date of application for the supplemental type-certificate or the major change approval;

(d) the compliance findings made under JAA or Member State procedures shall be deemed to have been made by the Agency for the purpose of complying with point 21.A.115(a) of Part 21.

Continued operation of certain aircraft registered by Member States

Article 2c

1. With regard to an aircraft that cannot be deemed to have a type-certificate issued in accordance with Article 2a, 1(a) of this Regulation, that has been issued a certificate of airworthiness by a Member State before Regulation (EC) No 1702/2003 became applicable in that Member State, was on its register on that date, and was still on the register of a Member State on 28 March 2007, the combination of the following shall be deemed to constitute the applicable specific airworthiness specifications issued in accordance with this Regulation:

(a) the type-certificate data sheet and type-certificate data sheet for noise, or equivalent documents, of the State of design, provided that the State of design has concluded the appropriate working arrangement in accordance with Article 27(2) of basic Regulation (EC) with the Agency covering the continued airworthiness of the design of such an aircraft;

(b) the environmental protection requirements laid down in Annex 16 to the Chicago Convention, as applicable to that aircraft; and

(c) the mandatory continuing airworthiness information of the State of design.

Continued validity of parts and appliances certificates

Article 2d

1. Approvals of parts and appliances issued by a Member State and valid on 28 September 2003 shall be deemed to have been issued in accordance with this Regulation.

2. With regard to parts and appliances for which an approval or authorisation process was being carried out by a Member State on 28 September 2003, the following shall apply:

(a) if an authorisation process was being carried out by several Member States, the most advanced project shall be used as the reference;

(b) point 21.A.603 of Part 21 shall not apply;

(c) the applicable data requirements laid down in point 21.A.605 of Part 21 shall be those established by the relevant Member State, at the date of application for the approval or authorisation;

(d) compliance findings made by the relevant Member State shall be deemed to have been made by the Agency for the purpose of complying with point 21.A.606(b) of Part 21.

Permit to fly

Article 2e

The conditions determined before 28 March 2007 by the Member States for permits to fly or other airworthiness certificate issued for aircraft which did not hold a certificate of airworthiness or restricted certificate of airworthiness issued under this Regulation, are deemed to have been determined in accordance with this Regulation, unless the Agency has determined before 28 March 2008 that such conditions do not provide for a level of safety equivalent to that required by Regulation (EC) No 216/2008 or this Regulation

Permits to fly or other airworthiness certificate issued before 28 March 2008 for aircraft which did not hold a certificate of airworthiness or restricted certificate of airworthiness issued under this Regulation, are deemed to have been determined in accordance with this Regulation until 28 March 2008.

Design organisations

Article 3

1. An organisation responsible for the design of products, parts and appliances or for changes or repairs thereto shall demonstrate its capability in accordance with Part 21.

2. By way of derogation from paragraph 1, an organisation whose principal place of business is in a non-member State may demonstrate its capability by holding a certificate issued by that State for the product, part and appliance for which it applies, provided:

(a) that State is the State of design; and

(b) the Agency has determined that the system of that State includes the same independent level of checking of compliance as provided by this Regulation, either through an equivalent system of approvals of organisations or through direct involvement of the competent authority of that State.

3. Design organisation approvals issued or recognised by a Member State in accordance with the JAA requirements and procedures and valid before 28 September 2003 shall be deemed to comply with this Regulation. In such case, the period for closure of level two findings, referred to in Subpart J of Part 21, shall not exceed one year when those findings are associated with differences with previous applicable JAR.

4. A type-certificate holder who does not hold on 28 September 2003 an appropriate design organisation approval issued under applicable JAA procedures shall demonstrate its capability under the conditions laid down in 21A.14 of Part 21 before 28 September 2005.

5. An organisation, being the applicant for a supplemental type-certificate, a major repair design approval or an Auxiliary Power Unit design approval which does not hold on 28 September 2003 an appropriate design organisation approval issued by a Member State under applicable JAA procedures shall demonstrate its capability before 28 September 2005 in accordance with Part 21, 21A.112A, 21A.432B, or in the case of an Auxiliary Power Unit, 21A.602B.

6. With regard to organisations for which a design organisation approval is proceeding through a Member State on 28 September 2003 under applicable JAA procedures:

1. 21A.234 of Part 21 shall not apply;

2. compliance findings made under JAA procedures shall be deemed to have been made by the Agency for the purpose of complying with 21A.245 of Part 21.

Production organisations Article 4

1. An organisation responsible for the manufacture of products, parts and appliances shall demonstrate its capability in accordance with the provisions of Part 21.

2. By way of derogation from paragraph 1, a manufacturer whose principal place of business is in a non-member State may demonstrate its capability by holding a certificate issued by that State for the product, part and appliance for which it applies, provided:

(a) that State is the State of manufacture; and

(b) the Agency has determined that the system of that State includes the same independent level of checking of compliance as provided by this Regulation, either through an equivalent system of approvals of organisations or through direct involvement of the competent authority of that State.

3. Production organisation approvals issued or recognised by a Member State in accordance with the JAA requirements and procedures and valid before 28 September 2003 shall be deemed to comply with this Regulation. In such case, the period for closure of level two findings, referred to in Subpart G of Part 21, shall not exceed one year when those findings are associated with differences with previous applicable JAR.

4. An organisation shall demonstrate its capability under this Regulation before 28 September 2005.

5. Until an organisation has demonstrated its capability under Subparts F and G of Part 21, statements of conformity and authorised release certificates issued by that organisation under applicable national regulations shall be deemed to have been issued under this Regulation.

6. With regard to organisations for which a production organisation approval is proceeding through a Member State on 28 September 2003 under applicable JAA procedures:

(a) 21A.134 of Part 21 shall not apply;

(b) compliance findings made under JAA procedures shall be deemed to have been made by the Agency for the purpose of complying with 21A.145 of Part 21.

Entry into force Article 5

1. This Regulation shall enter into force on 28 September2003, except for 21A.804(a)(3) of Part 21 which shall enter into force on 28 March 2004 and Subparts H of Part 21 which shall enter into force on 28 September 2004.

2. By way of derogation from 21A.159 of Part 21, Member States may issue approvals of a limited duration until 28 September 2007.

3. By way of derogation from 21A.181 of Part 21, Member States may issue certificates of a limited duration until 28 September 2008.

4. When a Member State makes use of the provisions of paragraphs 2 or 3 it shall notify the Commission and the Agency.

5. By way of derogation from paragraph 1, production organisations approved in accordance with Section A of Subparts F and G of the Annex (Part 21) to this Regulation may continue to issue Authorised Release Certificates or statements of conformity using the EASA Form 1, initial issue, as laid down in Appendix I of the Annex (Part 21) to this Regulation until 28 September 2010.

ANNEX

PART 21

Certification of aircraft and related products, parts and appliances, and of design and production organisations

Contents

21.1 General

SECTION A — TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS

SUBPART A — GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 21A.1 Scope
- 21A.2 Undertaking by another person than the applicant for, or holder of, a certificate
- 21A.3 Failures, malfunctions and defects
- 21A.3B Airworthiness directives
- 21A.4 Coordination between design and production

SUBPART B — TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

- 21A.11 Scope
- 21A.13 Eligibility
- 21A.14 Demonstration of capability
- 21A.15 Application
- 21A.16A Airworthiness codes
- 21A.16B Special conditions
- 21A.17 Type-certification basis

21A.18 Designation of applicable environmental protection requirements and certification specifications

21A.19 Changes requiring a new type-certificate

21A.20 Compliance with the type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements

21A.21 Issue of a type-certificate

21A.23	Issue of a	restricted	type-certificate
--------	------------	------------	------------------

- 21A.31 Type design
- 21A.33 Investigation and tests
- 21A.35 Flight tests
- 21A.41 Type-certificate
- 21A.44 Obligations of the holder
- 21A.47 Transferability
- 21A.51 Duration and continued validity
- 21A.55 Record-keeping
- 21A.57 Manuals
- 21A.61 Instructions for continued airworthiness

(SUBPART C - NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART D — CHANGES TO TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

- 21A.90 Scope
- 21A.91 Classification of changes in type design
- 21A.92 Eligibility
- 21A.93 Application
- 21A.95 Minor changes
- 21A.97 Major changes

21A.101 Designation of applicable certification specifications and environmental protection requirements

- 21A.103 Issue of approval
- 21A.105 Record-keeping
- 21A.107 Instructions for continued airworthiness
- 21A.109 Obligations and EPA marking

SUBPART E — SUPPLEMENTAL TYPE-CERTIFICATES

21A.111 Scope

21A.112A Eligibility

- 21A.112B Demonstration of capability
- 21A.113 Application for a supplemental type-certificate
- 21A.114 Showing of compliance
- 21A.115 Issue of a supplemental type-certificate
- 21A.116 Transferability
- 21A.117 Changes to that part of a product covered by a supplemental type-certificate
- 21A.118A Obligations and EPA marking
- 21A.118B Duration and continued validity
- 21A.119 Manuals
- 21A.120 Instructions for continued airworthiness

SUBPART F -- PRODUCTION WITHOUT PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

- 21A.121 Scope
- 21A.122 Eligibility
- 21A.124 Application
- 21A.125A Issue of a letter of agreement
- 21A.125B Findings
- 21A.125C Duration and continued validity
- 21A.126 Production inspection system
- 21A.127 Tests: aircraft
- 21A.128 Tests: engines and propellers
- 21A.129 Obligations of the manufacturer
- 21A.130 Statement of conformity

SUBPART G - PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

- 21A.131 Scope 21A.133 Eligibility
- 21A.134 Application
- 21A.135 Issue of production organisation approval
- 21A.139 Quality system
- 21A.143 Exposition
- 21A.145 Approval requirements
- 21A.147 Changes to the approved production organisation
- 21A.148 Changes of location
- 21A.149 Transferability
- 21A.151 Terms of approval
- 21A.153 Changes to the terms of approval
- 21A.157 Investigations
- 21A.158 Findings
- 21A.159 Duration and continued validity
- 21A.163 Privileges
- 21A.165 Obligations of the holder

SUBPART H — CERTIFICATES OF AIRWORTHINESS AND RESTRICTED CERTIFICATES OF AIRWORTHINESS

- 21A.171 Scope
- 21A.172 Eligibility
- 21A.173 Classification
- 21A.174 Application
- 21A.175 Language
- 21A.177 Amendment or modification
- 21A.179 Transferability and reissuance within Member States

- 21A.180 Inspections
- 21A.181 Duration and continued validity
- 21A.182 Aircraft identification

SUBPART I — NOISE CERTIFICATES

- 21A.201 Scope
- 21A.203 Eligibility
- 21A.204 Application
- 21A.207 Amendment or modification
- 21A.209 Transferability and reissuance within Member States
- 21A.210 Inspections
- 21A.211 Duration and continued validity

SUBPART J — DESIGN ORGANISATION APPROVAL

- 21A.231 Scope
- 21A.233 Eligibility
- 21A.234 Application
- 21A.235 Issue of design organisation approval
- 21A.239 Design assurance system
- 21A.243 Data
- 21A.245 Approval requirements
- 21A.247 Changes in design assurance system
- 21A.249 Transferability
- 21A.251 Terms of approval
- 21A.253 Changes to the terms of approval
- 21A.257 Investigations
- 21A.258 Findings

21A.259 Duration and continued validity

21A.263 Privileges

21A.265 Obligations of the holder

SUBPART K — PARTS AND APPLIANCES

21A.301 Scope

- 21A.303 Compliance with applicable requirements
- 21A.305 Approval of parts and appliances
- 21A.307 Release of parts and appliances for installation

(SUBPART L - NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART M — REPAIRS

21A.431 Scope

21A.432A Eligibility

21A.432B Demonstration of capability

21A.433 Repair design

- 21A.435 Classification of repairs
- 21A.437 Issue of a repair design approval
- 21A.439 Production of repair parts
- 21A.441 Repair embodiment

21A.443 Limitations

- 21A.445 Unrepaired damage
- 21A.447 Record-keeping
- 21A.449 Instructions for continued airworthiness
- 21A.451 Obligations and EPA marking

(SUBPART N - NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART O — EUROPEAN TECHNICAL STANDARD ORDER AUTHORISATIONS

- 21A.601 Scope
- 21A.602A Eligibility
- 21A.602B Demonstration of capability
- 21A.603 Application
- 21A.604 ETSO Authorisation for an auxiliary power unit (APU)
- 21A.605 Data requirements
- 21A.606 Issue of ETSO authorisation
- 21A.607 ETSO authorisation privileges
- 21A.608 Declaration of design and performance (DDP)
- 21A.609 Obligations of holders of ETSO authorisations
- 21A.610 Approval for deviation
- 21A.611 Design changes
- 21A.613 Record-keeping
- 21A.615 Inspection by the Agency
- 21A.619 Duration and continued validity
- 21A.621 Transferability

SUBPART P — PERMIT TO FLY

- 21A.701 Scope
- 21A.703 Eligibility
- 21A.705 Competent Authority
- 21A.707 Application for permit to fly
- 21A.708 Flight conditions
- 21A.709 Application for approval of flight conditions
- 21A.710 Approval of flight conditions
- 21A.711 Issue of a permit to fly

21A.713 Changes

- 21A.715 Language
- 21A.719 Transferability
- 21A.72 Inspections
- 21A.723 Duration and continued validity
- 21A.725 Renewal of permit to fly
- 21A.727 Obligations of the holder of a permit to fly
- 21A.729 Record-keeping

SUBPART Q - IDENTIFICATION OF PRODUCTS, PARTS AND APPLIANCES

- 21A.801 Identification of products
- 21A.803 Handling of identification data
- 21A.804 Identification of parts and appliances
- 21A.805 Identification of critical parts
- 21A.807 Identification of ETSO articles

SECTION B — PROCEDURES FOR COMPETENT AUTHORITIES

SUBPART A — GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 21B.5 Scope
- 21B.20 Obligations of the competent authority
- 21B.25 Requirements for the organisation of the competent authority
- 21B.30 Documented procedures
- 21B.35 Changes in organisation and procedures
- 21B.40 Resolution of disputes
- 21B.45 Reporting/coordination
- 21B.55 Record-keeping
- 21B.60 Airworthiness directives

SUBPART B — TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

(SUBPART C — NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART D — CHANGES TO TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

SUBPART E — SUPPLEMENTAL TYPE-CERTIFICATES

SUBPART F --- PRODUCTION WITHOUT PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

- 21B.120 Investigation
- 21B.125 Findings
- 21B.130 Issue of letter of agreement
- 21B.135 Maintenance of the letter of agreement
- 21B.140 Amendment of a letter of agreement
- 21B.145 Limitation, suspension and revocation of a letter of agreement
- 21B.150 Record-keeping

SUBPART G - PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

- 21B.220 Investigation
- 21B.225 Findings
- 21B.230 Issue of certificate
- 21B.235 Continued surveillance
- 21B.240 Amendment of a production organisation approval
- 21B.245 Suspension and revocation of a production organisation approval
- 21B.260 Record-keeping

SUBPART H — CERTIFICATES OF AIRWORTHINESS AND RESTRICTED CERTIFICATES OF AIRWORTHINESS

- 21B.320 Investigation
- 21B.325 Issue of airworthiness certificate
- 21B.326 Certificate of airworthiness
- 21B.327 Restricted certificate of airworthiness

21B.330 Suspension and revocation of certificates of airworthiness and restricted certificates of airworthiness

21B.345 Record-keeping

SUBPART I — NOISE CERTIFICATES

- 21B.420 Investigation
- 21B.425 Issue of noise certificates
- 21B.430 Suspension and revocation of a noise certificate
- 21B.445 Record-keeping

SUBPART J - DESIGN ORGANISATION APPROVAL

- SUBPART K PARTS AND APPLIANCES
- (SUBPART L NOT APPLICABLE)
- SUBPART M REPAIRS
- (SUBPART N NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART O — EUROPEAN TECHNICAL STANDARD ORDER AUTHORISATIONS

SUBPART P — PERMIT TO FLY

- 21B.520 Investigation
- 21B.525 Issue of permits to fly
- 21B.530 Revocation of permits to fly
- 21B.545 Record-keeping

SUBPART Q — IDENTIFICATION OF PRODUCTS, PARTS AND APPLIANCES

APPENDICES — EASA FORMS

21.1 General

For the purpose of this Part, 'Competent Authority' shall be:

(a) for organisations having their principal place of business in a Member State, the authority designated by that Member State; or the Agency if so requested by that Member State;(b) for organisations having their principal place of business in a non-member State, the Agency.

SECTION A TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS

SUBPART A GENERAL PROVISIONS

21A.1 Scope

This Section establishes general provisions governing the rights and obligations of the applicant for, and holder of, any certificate issued or to be issued in accordance with this Section.

21A.2 Undertaking by another person than the applicant for, or holder of, a certificate

The actions and obligations required to be undertaken by the holder of, or applicant for, a certificate for a product, part or appliance under this Section may be undertaken on its behalf by any other natural or legal person, provided the holder of, or applicant for, that certificate can show that it has made an agreement with the other person such as to ensure that the holder's obligations are and will be properly discharged.

21A.3 Failures, malfunctions and defects

(a) System for Collection, Investigation and Analysis of Data. The holder of a type-certificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, European Technical Standard Order (ETSO) authorisation, major repair design approval or any other relevant approval deemed to have been issued under this Regulation shall have a system for collecting, investigating and analysing reports of and information related to failures, malfunctions, defects or other occurrences which cause or might cause adverse effects on the continuing airworthiness of the product, part or appliance covered by the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, ETSO authorisation, major repair design approval or any other relevant approval deemed to have been issued under this Regulation. Information about this system shall be made available to all known operators of the product, part or appliance and, on request, to any person authorised under other associated implementing Regulations.

(b) Reporting to the Agency.

1. The holder of a type-certificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, ETSO authorisation, major repair design approval or any other relevant approval deemed to have been issued under this Regulation shall report to the Agency any failure, malfunction,

defect or other occurrence of which it is aware related to a product, part, or appliance covered by the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, ETSO authorisation, major repair design approval or any other relevant approval deemed to have been issued under this Regulation, and which has resulted in or may result in an unsafe condition.

2. These reports shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency, as soon as practicable and in any case dispatched not later than 72 hours after the identification of the possible unsafe condition, unless exceptional circumstances prevent this.

(c) Investigation of Reported Occurrences.

1. When an occurrence reported under paragraph (b), or under 21A.129(f)(2) or 21A.165(f)(2) results from a deficiency in the design, or a manufacturing deficiency, the holder of the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, major repair design approval, ETSO authorisation, or any other relevant approval deemed to have been issued under this Regulation, or the manufacturer as appropriate, shall investigate the reason for the deficiency and report to the Agency the results of its investigation and any action it is taking or proposes to take to correct that deficiency.

2. If the Agency finds that an action is required to correct the deficiency, the holder of the typecertificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, major repair design approval, ETSO authorisation, or any other relevant approval deemed to have been issued under this Regulation, or the manufacturer as appropriate, shall submit the relevant data to the Agency.

21A.3B Airworthiness directives

(a) An airworthiness directive means a document issued or adopted by the Agency which mandates actions to be performed on an aircraft to restore an acceptable level of safety, when evidence shows that the safety level of this aircraft may otherwise be compromised.

(b) The Agency shall issue an airworthiness directive when:

1. an unsafe condition has been determined by the Agency to exist in an aircraft, as a result of a deficiency in the aircraft, or an engine, propeller, part or appliance installed on this aircraft; 2. that condition is likely to exist or develop in other aircraft.

(c) When an airworthiness directive has to be issued by the agency to correct the unsafe condition referred to in paragraph (b), or to require the performance of an inspection, the holder of the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, major repair design approval, ETSO authorisation or any other relevant approval deemed to have been issued under this Regulation, shall:

1. Propose the appropriate corrective action or required inspections, or both, and submit details of these proposals to the Agency for approval.

2. Following the approval by the Agency of the proposals referred to under subparagraph (1), make available to all known operators or owners of the product, part or appliance and, on request, to any person required to comply with the airworthiness directive, appropriate descriptive data and accomplishment instructions.

(d) An airworthiness directive shall contain at least the following information:

- 1. An identification of the unsafe condition;
- 2. An identification of the affected aircraft;
- 3. The action(s) required;

- 4. The compliance time for the required action(s);
- 5. The date of entry into force.

21A.4 Coordination between design and production

Each holder of a type-certificate, restricted type-certificate, supplemental type-certificate, ETSO authorisation, approval of a change to type design or approval of a repair design, shall collaborate with the production organisation as necessary to ensure:

(a) The satisfactory coordination of design and production required by 21A.122 or 21A.133 or 21A.165(c)(2) as appropriate,

(b) The proper support of the continued airworthiness of the product, part or appliance.

SUBPART B TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

21A.11 Scope

This Subpart establishes the procedure for issuing type-certificates for products and restricted type-certificates for aircraft, and establishes the rights and obligations of the applicants for, and holders of, those certificates.

21A.13 Eligibility

Any natural or legal person that has demonstrated, or is in the process of demonstrating, its capability in accordance with 21A.14 shall be eligible as an applicant for a type-certificate or a restricted type-certificate under the conditions laid down in this Subpart.

21A.14 Demonstration of capability

(a) Any organisation applying for a type-certificate or restricted type-certificate shall demonstrate its capability by holding a design organisation approval, issued by the Agency in accordance with Subpart J.

(b) By way of derogation from paragraph (a), as an alternative procedure to demonstrate its capability, an applicant may seek Agency agreement for the use of procedures setting out the specific design practices, resources and sequence of activities necessary to comply with this Part, when the product is one of the following:

1. a very light aeroplane or rotorcraft, a sailplane or a powered sailplane, a balloon, a hot air airship; or

2. a small aeroplane meeting all of the following elements:

(i) Single piston engine, naturally aspirated, of not more than 250 hp Maximum Take-Off Power (MTOP);

(ii) Conventional configuration;

- (iii) Conventional material and structure;
- (iv) Flights under VFR, outside icing conditions;

(v) Maximum 4 seats including the pilot and maximum take off mass limited to 3000 lb. (1361 kg);

(vi) Unpressurised cabin;

- (vii) Non-power assisted controls;
- (viii) Basic aerobatic flights limited to +6/-3g; or

3. a piston engine; or

4. an engine or a propeller type-certificated under the applicable airworthiness code for powered sailplanes; or

5. a fixed or variable pitch propeller.

21A.15 Application

(a) An application for a type-certificate or restricted type-certificate shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency.

(b) An application for an aircraft type-certificate or restricted type-certificate shall be accompanied by a three-view drawing of that aircraft and preliminary basic data, including the proposed operating characteristics and limitations.

(c) An application for an engine or propeller type-certificate shall be accompanied by a general arrangement drawing, a description of the design features, the operating characteristics, and the proposed operating limitations, of the engine, or propeller.

21A.16A Airworthiness codes

The Agency shall issue in accordance with Article 19 of the basic Regulation airworthiness codes as standard means to show compliance of products, parts and appliances with the essential requirements of Annex I to the basic Regulation.

Such codes shall be sufficiently detailed and specific to indicate to applicants the conditions under which certificates will be issued.

21A.16B Special conditions

(a) The Agency shall prescribe special detailed technical specifications, named special conditions, for a product, if the related airworthiness code does not contain adequate or appropriate safety standards for the product, because:

1. The product has novel or unusual design features relative to the design practices on which the applicable airworthiness code is based; or

2. The intended use of the product is unconventional; or

3. Experience from other similar products in service or products having similar design features, has shown that unsafe conditions may develop.

(b) The special conditions contain such safety standards as the Agency finds necessary to establish a level of safety equivalent to that established in the applicable airworthiness code.

21A.17 Type-certification basis

(a) The type-certification basis to be notified for the issuance of a type-certificate or a restricted type-certificate shall consist of:

1. The applicable airworthiness code established by the Agency that is effective on the date of application for that certificate unless:

(i) Otherwise specified by the Agency; or

(ii) Compliance with later effective amendments is elected by the applicant or required under paragraphs (c) and (d).

2. Any special condition prescribed in accordance with 21A.16B(a).

(b) An application for type-certification of large aeroplanes and large rotorcraft shall be effective for five years and an application for any other type-certificate shall be effective for

three years, unless an applicant shows at the time of application that its product requires a longer period of time for design, development, and testing, and the Agency approves a longer period.

(c) In the case where a type-certificate has not been issued, or it is clear that a type-certificate will not be issued, within the time limit established under paragraph (b); the applicant may:

1. File a new application for a type-certificate and comply with all the provisions of paragraph (a) applicable to an original application; or

2. File for an extension of the original application and comply with the applicable airworthiness codes that were effective on a date, to be selected by the applicant, not earlier than the date which precedes the date of issue of the type-certificate by the time limit established under paragraph (b) for the original application.

(d) If an applicant elects to comply with an amendment to the airworthiness codes that is effective after the filing of the application for a type-certificate, the applicant shall also comply with any other amendment that the Agency finds is directly related.

21A.18 Designation of applicable environmental protection requirements and certification specifications

(a) The applicable noise requirements for the issue of a type-certificate for an aircraft are prescribed according to the provisions of Chapter 1 of Annex 16, Volume I, Part II to the Chicago Convention and:

- 1. for subsonic jet aeroplanes, in Volume I, Part II, Chapters 2, 3 and 4, as applicable;
- 2. for propeller-driven aeroplanes, in Volume I, Part II, Chapters 3, 4, 5, 6 and 10, as applicable;
- 3. for helicopters, in Volume I, Part II, Chapters 8 and 11, as applicable; and
- 4. for supersonic aeroplanes, in Volume I, Part II, Chapter 12, as applicable.

(b) The applicable emission requirements for the issue of a type-certificate for an aircraft and engine are prescribed in Annex 16 to the Chicago Convention:

1. for prevention of intentional fuel venting, in Volume II, Part II, Chapter 2;

2. for emissions of turbo-jet and turbofan engines intended for propulsion only at subsonic speeds, in Volume II, Part III, Chapter 2; and

3. for emissions of turbo-jet and turbofan engines intended for propulsion only at supersonic speeds, in Volume II, Part III, Chapter 3.

(c) The Agency shall issue, in accordance with Article 14 of the basic Regulation, certification specifications providing for acceptable means to demonstrate compliance with the noise and the emission requirements laid down in paragraphs (a) and (b) respectively.

21A.19 Changes requiring a new type-certificate

Any natural or legal person proposing to change a product shall apply for a new type-certificate if the Agency finds that the change in design, power, thrust, or mass is so extensive that a substantially complete investigation of compliance with the applicable type-certification basis is required.

21A.20 Compliance with the type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements

(a) The applicant for a type-certificate or a restricted type-certificate shall show compliance with the applicable typecertification basis and environmental protection requirements and shall provide to the Agency the means by which such compliance has been shown.

(b) The applicant shall declare that it has shown compliance with all applicable typecertification basis and environmental protection requirements.

(c) Where the applicant holds an appropriate design organisation approval, the declaration of paragraph (b) shall be made according to the provisions of Subpart J.

21A.21 Issue of a type-certificate

The applicant shall be entitled to have a product type-certificate issued by the Agency after: (a) demonstrating its capability in accordance with 21A.14;

(b) submitting the declaration referred to in 21A.20(b);

(c) it is shown that:

1. The product to be certificated meets the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements designated in accordance with 21A.17 and 21A.18;

2. Any airworthiness provisions not complied with are compensated for by factors that provide an equivalent level of safety;

3. No feature or characteristic makes it unsafe for the uses for which certification is requested; and

4. The type-certificate applicant has expressly stated that it is prepared to comply with 21A.44. (d) In the case of an aircraft type-certificate, the engine or propeller, or both, if installed in the aircraft, have a type-certificate issued or determined in accordance with this Regulation.

21A.23 Issue of a restricted type-certificate

(a) For an aircraft that does not meet the provisions of 21A.21(c), the applicant shall be entitled to have a restricted type-certificate issued by the Agency after:

1. complying with the appropriate type-certification basis established by the Agency ensuring adequate safety with regard to the intended use of the aircraft, and with the applicable environmental protection requirements;

2. expressly stating that it is prepared to comply with 21A.44.

(b) The engine or propeller installed in the aircraft, or both, shall:

1. have a type-certificate issued or determined in accordance with this Regulation; or

2. have been shown to be in compliance with the certification specifications necessary to ensure safe flight of the aircraft.

21A.31 Type design

(a) The type design shall consist of:

1. The drawings and specifications, and a listing of those drawings and specifications, necessary to define the configuration and the design features of the product shown to comply with the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements;

2. Information on materials and processes and on methods of manufacture and assembly of the product necessary to ensure the conformity of the product;

3. An approved airworthiness limitations section of the instructions for continued airworthiness as defined by the applicable airworthiness code; and

4. Any other data necessary to allow by comparison, the determination of the airworthiness, the characteristics of noise, fuel venting, and exhaust emissions (where applicable) of later products of the same type.

(b) Each type design shall be adequately identified.

21A.33 Investigation and tests

(a) The applicant shall perform all inspections and tests necessary to show compliance with the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements.

(b) Before each test required by paragraph (a) is undertaken, the applicant shall have determined:

1. For the test specimen:

(i) That materials and processes adequately conform to the specifications for the proposed type design;

(ii) That parts of the products adequately conform to the drawings in the proposed type design;(iii) That the manufacturing processes, construction and assembly adequately conform to those specified in the proposed type design; and

2. That the test equipment and all measuring equipment used for tests are adequate for the test and are appropriately calibrated.

(c) The applicant shall allow the Agency to make any inspection necessary to check compliance with paragraph (b).

(d) The applicant shall allow the Agency to review any report and make any inspection and to perform or witness any flight and ground test necessary to check the validity of the declaration of compliance submitted by the applicant under 21A.20(b) and to determine that no feature or characteristic makes the product unsafe for the uses for which certification is requested.

(e) For tests performed or witnessed by the Agency under paragraph (d):

1. The applicant shall submit to the Agency a statement of compliance with paragraph (b); and 2. No change relating to the test that would affect the statement of compliance may be made to a product, part or appliance between the time compliance with paragraph (b) is shown and the time it is presented to the Agency for test.

21A.35 Flight Tests

(a) Flight testing for the purpose of obtaining a type-certificate shall be conducted in accordance with conditions for such flight testing specified by the Agency.

(b) The applicant shall make all flight tests that the Agency finds necessary:

1. To determine compliance with the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements,

2. For aircraft to be certificated under this Section, except (i) baloons, sailplanes and powered sailplanes and except (ii) airships and aeroplanes of 2 722 kg or less Maximum Take-Off Mass (MTOM), to determine whether there is reasonable assurance that the aircraft, its parts and appliances are reliable and function properly.

(c) (Reserved)

(d) (Reserved)

(e) (Reserved)

(f) The flight tests prescribed in subparagraph (b)(2) shall include:

1. For aircraft incorporating turbine engines of a type not previously used in a type-certificated aircraft, at least 300 hours of operation with a full complement of engines that conform to a type-certificate; and

2. For all other aircraft, at least 150 hours of operation.

21A.41 Type-certificate

The type-certificate and restricted type-certificate are both considered to include the type design, the operating limitations, the type-certificate data sheet for airworthiness and emissions, the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements with which the Agency records compliance, and any other conditions or limitations prescribed for the product in the applicable certification specifications and environmental protection requirements. The aircraft type-certificate and restricted type-certificate, in addition, both include the type-certificate data sheet for noise.

The engine type-certificate data sheet includes the record of emission compliance.

21A.44 Obligations of the holder

Each holder of a type-certificate or restricted type-certificate shall:

(a) undertake the obligations laid down in 21A.3, 21A.3B, 21A.4, 21A.55, 21A.57 and 21A.61; and, for this purpose, shall continue to meet the qualification requirements for eligibility under 21A.14;

(b) specify the marking in accordance with Subpart Q.

21A.47 Transferability

Transfer of a type-certificate or restricted type-certificate may only be made to a natural or legal person that is able to undertake the obligations under 21A.44, and, for this purpose, has demonstrated its ability to qualify under the criteria of 21A.14.

21A.51 Duration and continued validity

(a) A type-certificate and restricted type-certificate shall be issued for an unlimited duration. They shall remain valid subject to:

1. The holder remaining in compliance with this Part;

2. The certificate not being surrendered or revoked under the applicable administrative procedures established by the Agency.

(b) Upon surrender or revocation, the type-certificate and restricted type-certificate shall be returned to the Agency.

21A.55 Record keeping

All relevant design information, drawings and test reports, including inspection records for the product tested, shall be held by the type-certificate or restricted type-certificate holder at the

disposal of the Agency and shall be retained in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continued airworthiness and compliance with applicable environmental protection requirements of the product.

21A.57 Manuals

The holder of a type-certificate or restricted type-certificate shall produce, maintain and update master copies of all manuals required by the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements for the product, and provide copies, on request, to the Agency.

21A.61 Instructions for continued airworthiness

(a) The holder of the type-certificate or restricted type-certificate shall furnish at least one set of complete instructions for continued airworthiness, comprising descriptive data and accomplishment instructions prepared in accordance with the applicable type-certification basis, to each known owner of one or more aircraft, engine or propeller upon its delivery or upon issue of the first certificate of airworthiness for the affected aircraft, whichever occurs later and thereafter make those instructions available on request to any other person required to comply with any of the terms of those instructions. The availability of some manual or portion of the instructions for continued airworthiness, dealing with overhaul or other forms of heavy maintenance, may be delayed until after the product has entered into service, but shall be available before any of the products reaches the relevant age or flight-hours/cycles.

(b) In addition, changes to the instructions for continued airworthiness shall be made available to all known operators of the product and shall be made available on request to any person required to comply with any of those instructions. A programme showing how changes to the instructions for continued airworthiness are distributed shall be submitted to the Agency.

(SUBPART C — NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART D CHANGES TO TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

21A.90 Scope

This Subpart establishes the procedure for the approval of changes to type designs and typecertificates, and establishes the rights and obligations of the applicants for, and holders of, those approvals. In this Subpart, references to type-certificates include type-certificate and restricted type-certificate.

21A.91 Classification of changes in type design

Changes in type design are classified as minor and major. A 'minor change' is one that has no appreciable effect on the mass, balance, structural strength, reliability, operational characteristics, noise, fuel venting, exhaust emission, or other characteristics affecting the airworthiness of the product. Without prejudice to 21A.19, all other changes are 'major changes' under this Subpart. Major and minor changes shall be approved in accordance with 21A.95 or 21A.97 as appropriate, and shall be adequately identified.

21A.92 Eligibility

(a) Only the type-certificate holder may apply for approval of a major change to a type design under this Subpart; all other applicants for a major change to a type design shall apply under Subpart E.

(b) Any natural or legal person may apply for approval of a minor change to a type design under this Subpart.

21A.93 Application

An application for approval of a change to a type design shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency and shall include:

(a) A description of the change identifying

1. All parts of the type design and the approved manuals affected by the change; and

2. The certification specifications and environmental protection requirements with which the change has been designed to comply in accordance with 21A.101.

(b) Identification of any re-investigations necessary to show compliance of the changed product with the applicable certification specifications and environmental protection requirements.

21A.95 Minor changes

Minor changes in a type design shall be classified and approved either:

(a) By the Agency; or

(b) By an appropriately approved design organisation under a procedure agreed with the Agency.

21A.97 Major changes

(a) An applicant for approval of a major change shall:

1. Submit to the Agency substantiating data together with any necessary descriptive data for inclusion in the type design;

2. Show that the changed product complies with applicable certification specifications and environmental protection requirements, as specified in 21A.101;

3. Declare that it has shown compliance with the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements and shall provide to the Agency the basis on which such a declaration is made; 4. Where the applicant holds an appropriate design organisation approval, make the declaration of subparagraph (a)(3) according to the provisions of Subpart J;
5. Comply with 21A.33 and, where applicable, 21A.35.

(b) Approval of a major change in a type design is limited to that or those specific configuration(s) in the type design upon which the change is made.

21A.101 Designation of applicable certification specifications and environmental protection requirements

(a) An applicant for a change to a type-certificate shall demonstrate that the changed product complies with the airworthiness code that is applicable to the changed product and that is in effect at the date of the application for the change, and with the applicable environmental protection requirements laid down in 21A.18.

(b) By derogation from paragraph (a), an applicant may show that the changed product complies with an earlier amendment of the airworthiness code defined in paragraph (a), and of any other certification specification the Agency finds is directly related. However, the earlier amended airworthiness code may not precede the corresponding airworthiness code incorporated by reference in the type-certificate. The applicant may show compliance with an earlier amendment of an airworthiness code for any of the following:

1. A change that the Agency finds not to be significant. In determining whether a specific change is significant, the Agency considers the change in context with all previous relevant design changes and all related revisions to the applicable certification specifications incorporated in the type-certificate for the product. Changes that meet one

of the following criteria are automatically considered significant:

(i) The general configuration or the principles of construction are not retained.

(ii) The assumptions used for certification of the product to be changed do not remain valid.

2. Each area, system, part or appliance that the Agency finds is not affected by the change.

3. Each area, system, part or appliance that is affected by the change, for which the Agency finds that compliance with an airworthiness code described in paragraph (a) would not contribute materially to the level of safety of the changed product or would be impractical.

(c) An applicant for a change to an aircraft (other than a rotorcraft) of 2 722 kg (6 000 lbs.) or less maximum weight or to a non-turbine rotorcraft of 1 361 kg (3 000 lbs.) or less maximum weight may show that the changed product complies with the type-certification basis incorporated by reference in the type-certificate. However, if the Agency finds that the change is significant in an area, the Agency may designate compliance with an amendment to the

type-certification basis incorporated by reference in the type-certificate, in effect at the date of the application, and any certification specification that the Agency finds is directly related, unless the Agency also finds that compliance with that amendment or certification specification would not contribute materially to the level of safety of the changed product or would be impractical.

(d) If the Agency finds that the airworthiness code in effect at the date of the application for the change does not provide adequate standards with respect to the proposed change, the applicant shall also comply with any special conditions, and amendments to those special conditions, prescribed under the provisions of 21A.16B, to provide a level of safety equivalent to that established in the airworthiness code in effect at the date of the application for the change.

(e) An application for a change to a type-certificate for large aeroplanes and large rotorcraft is effective for five years, and an application for a change to any other type-certificate is effective

for three years. In a case where the change has not been approved, or it is clear that it will not be approved under the time limit established under this subparagraph, the applicant may:

1. File a new application for a change to the type-certificate and comply with all the provisions of paragraph (a) applicable to an original application for a change; or

2. File for an extension of the original application and comply with the provisions of paragraph (a) for an effective date of application, to be selected by the applicant, not earlier than the date which precedes the date of approval of the change by the time period established under this subparagraph for the original application for the change.

21A.103 Issue of approval

(a) The applicant shall be entitled to have a major change to a type design approved by the Agency after:

1. submitting the declaration referred to in 21A.97(a)(3);

2. It is shown that:

(i) The changed product meets the applicable certification specifications and environmental protection requirements, as specified in 21A.101;

(ii) Any airworthiness provisions not complied with are compensated for by factors that provide an equivalent level of safety;

(iii) No feature or characteristic makes the product unsafe for the uses for which certification is requested.

(b) A minor change to a type design shall only be approved in accordance with 21A.95 if it is shown that the changed product meets the applicable certification specifications, as specified in 21A.101.

21A.105 Record keeping

For each change, all relevant design information, drawings and test reports, including inspection records for the changed product tested, shall be held by the applicant at the disposal of the Agency and shall be retained in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continued airworthiness and compliance with applicable environmental protection requirements of the changed product.

21A.107 Instructions for continued airworthiness

(a) The holder of a minor change approval to type design shall furnish at least one set of the associated variations, if any, to the instructions for continued airworthiness of the product on which the minor change is to be installed, prepared in accordance with the applicable type-certification basis, to each known owner of one or more aircraft, engine, or propeller incorporating the minor change, upon its delivery, or upon issuance of the first certificate of airworthiness for the affected aircraft, whichever occurs later, and thereafter make those variations in instructions available, on request, to any other person required to comply with any of the terms of those instructions.

(b) In addition, changes to those variations of the instructions for continued airworthiness shall be made available to all known operators of a product incorporating the minor change and shall be made available, on request, to any person required to comply with any of those instructions.

21A.109 Obligations and EPA marking

The holder of a minor change approval to type design shall:(a) undertake the obligations laid down in 21A.4, 21A.105 and 21A.107;(b) specify the marking, including EPA (hereinafter 'European Part Approval') letters, in accordance with 21A.804(a).

SUBPART E SUPPLEMENTAL TYPE-CERTIFICATES

21A.111 Scope

This Subpart establishes the procedure for the approval of major changes to the type design under supplemental typecertificate procedures, and establishes the rights and obligations of the applicants for, and holders of, those certificates.

21A.112 Eligibility

Any natural or legal person ('organisation') that has demonstrated, or is in the process of demonstrating, its capability under 21A.112B shall be eligible as an applicant for a supplemental type-certificate under the conditions laid down in this Subpart.

21A.112B Demonstration of capability

(a) Any organisation applying for a supplemental type-certificate shall demonstrate its capability by holding a design organisation approval, issued by the Agency in accordance with Subpart J.

(b) By way of derogation from paragraph (a), as an alternative procedure to demonstrate its capability, an applicant may seek Agency agreement for the use of procedures setting out the specific design practices, resources and sequence of activities necessary to comply with this Subpart.

21A.113 Application for a supplemental type-certificate

(a) An application for a supplemental type-certificate shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency.

(b) An application for a supplemental type-certificate shall include the descriptions and identification required by 21A.93. In addition, such an application shall include a justification

that the information on which those identifications are based is adequate either from the applicant's own resources, or through an arrangement with the type-certificate holder.

21A.114 Showing of compliance

Any applicant for a supplemental type-certificate shall comply with 21A.97.

21A.115 Issue of a supplemental type-certificate

The applicant shall be entitled to have a supplemental type-certificate issued by the Agency after:

(a) complying with 21A.103(a);

(b) demonstrating its capability in accordance with 21A.112B;

(c) where, under 21A.113(b), the applicant has entered into an arrangement with the type-certificate holder,

1. The type-certificate holder has advised that its has no technical objection to the information submitted under 21A.93; and

2. The type-certificate holder has agreed to collaborate with the supplemental type-certificate holder to ensure discharge of all obligations for continued airworthiness of the changed product through compliance with 21A.44 and 21A.118A.

21A.116 Transferability

A supplemental type-certificate shall only be transferred to a natural or legal person that is able to undertake the obligations of 21A.118A and for this purpose has demonstrated its ability to qualify under the criteria of 21A.112B.

21A.117 Changes to that part of a product covered by a supplemental type-certificate

(a) Minor changes to that part of a product covered by a supplemental type-certificate shall be classified and approved in accordance with Subpart D.

(b) Each major change to that part of a product covered by a supplemental type-certificate shall be approved as a separate supplemental type-certificate in accordance with this Subpart.

(c) By way of derogation from paragraph (b), a major change to that part of a product covered by a supplemental typecertificate submitted by the supplemental type-certificate holder itself may be approved as a change to the existing supplemental type-certificate.

21A.118A Obligations and EPA marking

Each holder of a supplemental type-certificate shall:(a) undertake the obligations:1. Laid down in 21A.3, 21A.3B, 21A.4, 21A.105, 21A.119 and 21A.120;

2. Implicit in the collaboration with the type-certificate holder under 21A.115(c)(2); and for this purpose continue to meet the criteria of 21A.112B
(b) specify the marking, including EPA letters, in accordance with 21A.804(a).

21A.118B Duration and continued validity

(a) A supplemental type-certificate shall be issued for an unlimited duration. It shall remain valid subject to:

1. The holder remaining in compliance with this Part;

2. the certificate not being surrendered or revoked under the applicable administrative procedures established by the Agency.

(b) Upon surrender or revocation, the supplemental type-certificate shall be returned to the Agency.

21A.119 Manuals

The holder of a supplemental type-certificate shall produce, maintain, and update master copies of variations in the manuals required by the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements for the product, necessary to cover the changes introduced under the supplemental type-certificate, and furnish copies of these manuals to the Agency on request.

21A.120 Instructions for continued airworthiness

(a) The holder of the supplemental type-certificate for an aircraft, engine, or propeller, shall furnish at least one set of the associated variations to the instructions for continued airworthiness, prepared in accordance with the applicable type-certification basis, to each known owner of one or more aircraft, engine, or propeller incorporating the features of the supplemental type-certificate, upon its delivery, or upon issuance of the first certificate of airworthiness for the affected aircraft, whichever occurs later, and thereafter make those variations in instructions available, on request, to any other person required to comply with any of the terms of those instructions. Availability of some manual or portion of the variations to the instructions for continued airworthiness, dealing with overhaul or other forms of heavy maintenance, may be delayed until after the product has entered into service, but shall be available before any of the products reaches the relevant age or flight-hours/cycles.

(b) In addition, changes to those variations of the instructions for continued airworthiness shall be made available to all known operators of a product incorporating the supplemental typecertificate and shall be made available, on request, to any person required to comply with any of those instructions. A programme showing how changes to the variations to the instructions for continued airworthiness are distributed shall be submitted to the Agency.

SUBPART F PRODUCTION WITHOUT PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

21A.121 Scope

(a) This Subpart establishes the procedure for demonstrating the conformity with the applicable design data of a product, part and appliance that is intended to be manufactured without a production organisation approval under Subpart G.

(b) This Subpart establishes the rules governing the obligations of the manufacturer of a product, part, or appliance being manufactured under this Subpart.

21A.122 Eligibility

Any natural or legal person may apply to show conformity of individual products, parts or appliances under this Subpart, if;

(a) it holds or has applied for an approval covering the design of that product, part or appliance, or

(b) it has ensured satisfactory coordination between production and design, through an appropriate arrangement with the applicant for, or holder of, an approval of such a design.

21A.124 Application

(a) Each application for an agreement to the showing of conformity of individual products, parts and appliances under this Subpart shall be made in a form and manner established by the Competent Authority.

(b) Such application shall contain:

1. evidence which demonstrate, where applicable, that:

(i) the issuance of a production organisation approval under Subpart G would be inappropriate; or

(ii) the certification or approval of a product, part or appliance under this Subpart is needed pending the issuance of a production organisation approval under Subpart G.

2. An outline of the information required by 21A.125(b).

21A.125A Issue of a letter of agreement

The applicant shall be entitled to have a letter of agreement issued by the Competent Authority agreeing to the showing of conformity of individual products, parts and appliances under this Subpart, after:

(a) having established a production inspection system that ensures that each product, part or appliance conforms to the applicable design data and is in condition for safe operation.

(b) providing a manual that contains:

1. a description of the production inspection system required under paragraph (a),
2. a description of the means for making the determinations of the production inspection system, 3. a description of the tests of 21A.127 and 21A.128, and the names of persons authorised for the purpose of 21A.130(a).

(c) demonstrating that it is able to provide assistance in accordance with 21A.3 and 21A.129(d).

21A.125B Findings

(a) When objective evidence is found showing non-compliance of the holder of a letter of agreement with the applicable requirements of this Part, the finding shall be classified as follows:

1. A level one finding is any non-compliance with this Part which could lead to uncontrolled non-compliances with applicable design data and which could affect the safety of the aircraft.

2. A level two finding is any non-compliance with this Part which is not classified as level one.(b) A level three finding is any item where it has been identified, by objective evidence, to contain potential problems that could lead to a non-compliance under paragraph (a).

(c) After receipt of notification of findings according to 21B.125:

1. In case of a level one finding, the holder of the letter of agreement shall demonstrate corrective action to the satisfaction of the Competent Authority within a period of no more than 21 working days after written confirmation of the finding;

2. In case of level two findings, the corrective action period granted by the Competent Authority shall be appropriate to the nature of the finding but in any case initially shall not be more than six months. In certain circumstances and subject to the nature of the finding the Competent Authority may extend the six month period subject to a satisfactory corrective action plan agreed by the Competent Authority.

3. A level three finding shall not require immediate action by the holder of the letter of agreement.

(d) In case of level one or level two findings, the letter of agreement may be subject to a partial or full limitation, suspension and revocation under 21B.145. The holder of the letter of agreement shall provide confirmation of receipt of the notice of limitation, suspension or revocation of the letter of agreement in a timely manner.

21A.125C Duration and continued validity

(a) The letter of agreement shall be issued for a limited duration not exceeding one year. It shall remain valid unless:

1. The holder of the letter of agreement fails to demonstrate compliance with the applicable requirements of this Subpart; or

2. There is evidence that the manufacturer cannot maintain satisfactory control of the manufacture of products, parts, or appliances under the agreement; or

3. The manufacturer no longer meets the requirements of 21A.122; or

4. The letter of agreement has been surrendered, revoked under 21B.145, or has expired.

(b) Upon surrender, revocation or expiry, the letter of agreement shall be returned to the Competent Authority.

21A.126 Production inspection system

(a) The production inspection system required under 21A.125 shall provide a means for determining that:

1. Incoming materials, and bought or subcontracted parts, used in the finished product are as specified in the applicable design data.

2. Incoming materials, and bought or subcontracted parts, are properly identified.

3. Processes, manufacturing techniques and methods of assembly affecting the quality and safety of the finished product are accomplished in accordance with specifications accepted by the Competent Authority.

4. Design changes, including material substitutions, have been approved under Subpart D or E and controlled before being incorporated in the finished product.

(b) The production inspection system required by 21A.125(a), shall also be such as to ensure that:

1. Parts in process are inspected for conformity with the applicable design data at points in production where accurate determinations can be made.

2. Materials subject to damage and deterioration are suitably stored and adequately protected.

3. Current design drawings are readily available to manufacturing and inspection personnel, and used when necessary.

4. Rejected materials and parts are segregated and identified in a manner that precludes installation in the finished product.

5. Materials and parts that are withheld because of departures from design data or specifications, and that are to be considered for installation in the finished product, are subjected to an approved engineering and manufacturing review procedure. Those materials and parts determined by this procedure to be serviceable shall be properly identified and reinspected if rework or repair is necessary. Materials and parts rejected by this procedure shall be marked and disposed of to ensure that they are not incorporated in the final product.

6. Records produced under the production inspection system are maintained, identified with the completed product or part where practicable, and retained by the manufacturer in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continued airworthiness of the product.

21A.127 Tests: aircraft

(a) Each manufacturer of an aircraft manufactured under this Subpart shall establish an approved production ground and flight test procedure and check-off forms, and in accordance with those forms, test each aircraft produced, as a means of establishing relevant aspects of compliance with 21A.125(a).

(b) Each production test procedure shall include at least the following:

1. A check on handling qualities;

2. A check on flight performance (using normal aircraft instrumentation);

3. A check on the proper functioning of all aircraft equipment and systems;

4. A determination that all instruments are properly marked, and that all placards and required flight manuals are installed after flight test;

5. A check of the operational characteristics of the aircraft on the ground;

6. A check on any other items peculiar to the aircraft being tested.

21A.128 Tests: engines and propellers

Each manufacturer of engines, or propellers manufactured under this Subpart shall subject each engine, or variable pitch propeller, to an acceptable functional test as specified in the type-certificate holder's documentation, to determine if it operates properly throughout the range of operation for which it is type-certificated, as a means of establishing relevant aspects of compliance with 21A.125A(a).

21A.129 Obligations of the manufacturer

Each manufacturer of a product, part or appliance being manufactured under this Subpart shall: (a) Make each product, part or appliance available for inspection by the Competent Authority.

(b) Maintain at the place of manufacture the technical data and drawings necessary to determine whether the product conforms to the applicable design data.

(c) Maintain the production inspection system that ensures that each product conforms to the applicable design data and is in condition for safe operation.

(d) Provide assistance to the holder of the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate or design approval in dealing with any continuing airworthiness actions that are related to the products, parts or appliances that have been produced.

(e) Establish and maintain an internal occurrence reporting system in the interest of safety, to enable the collection and assessment of occurrence reports in order to identify adverse trends or to address deficiencies, and to extract reportable occurrences. This system shall include evaluation of relevant information relating to occurrences and the promulgation of related information.

(f) 1. Report to the holder of the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate or design approval, all cases where products, parts or appliances have been released by the manufacturer and subsequently identified to have deviations from the applicable design data, and investigate with the holder of the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate or design approval to identify those deviations which could lead to an unsafe condition.

2. Report to the Agency and the competent authority of the Member State the deviations which could lead to an unsafe condition identified according to subparagraph (1). Such reports shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency under 21A.3(b)(2) or accepted by the competent authority of the Member State.

3. Where the manufacturer acts as supplier to another production organisation, report also to that other organisation all cases where it has released products, parts or appliances to that organisation and subsequently identified them to have possible deviations from the applicable design data.

21A.130 Statement of conformity

(a) Each manufacturer of a product, part or appliance manufactured under this Subpart shall raise a Statement of Conformity, an EASA Form 52, for complete aircraft, or EASA Form 1, for other products, parts or appliances (see Appendix). This statement shall be signed by an authorised person who holds a responsible position in the manufacturing organisation.

(b) A statement of conformity shall include:

1. For each product, part or appliance a statement that the product, part or appliance conforms to the approved design data and is in condition for safe operation;

2. For each aircraft, a statement that the aircraft has been ground and flight checked in accordance with 21A.127(a);

3. For each engine, or variable pitch propeller, a statement that the engine or propeller has been subjected by the manufacturer to a final functional test, in accordance with 21A.128, and additionally in case of engines, a determination according to data provided by the engine type-certificate holder that each completed engine is in compliance with the applicable emissions requirements current at the date of manufacture of the engine.

(c) Each manufacturer of such a product, part or appliance shall:

1. Upon the initial transfer by it of the ownership of such a product, part or appliance; or

2. Upon application for the original issue of an aircraft certificate of airworthiness; or

3. Upon application for the original issue of an airworthiness release document for an engine, a propeller, a part or appliance, present a current statement of conformity, for validation by the Competent Authority.

(d) The Competent Authority shall validate by counter-signature the Statement of Conformity if it finds after inspection that the product, part or appliance conforms to the applicable design data and is in condition for safe operation.

SUBPART G PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

21A.131 Scope

This Subpart establishes:

(a) The procedure for the issuance of a production organisation approval for a production organisation showing conformity of products, parts and appliances with the applicable design data.

(b) The rules governing the rights and obligations of the applicant for, and holders of, such approvals.

21A.133 Eligibility

Any natural or legal person ('organisation') shall be eligible as an applicant for an approval under this Subpart. The applicant shall:

(a) justify that, for a defined scope of work, an approval under this Subpart is appropriate for the purpose of showing conformity with a specific design; and

(b) hold or have applied for an approval of that specific design; or

(c) have ensured, through an appropriate arrangement with the applicant for, or holder of, an approval of that specific design, satisfactory coordination between production and design.

21A.134 Application

Each application for a production organisation approval shall be made to the Competent Authority in a form and manner established by that authority, and shall include an outline of the information required by 21A.143 and the terms of approval requested to be issued under 21A.151.

21A.135 Issue of production organisation approval

An organisation shall be entitled to have a production organisation approval issued by the Competent Authority when it has demonstrated compliance with the applicable requirements under this Subpart.

21A.139 Quality System

(a) The production organisation shall demonstrate that it has established and is able to maintain a quality system. The quality system shall be documented. This quality system shall be such as to enable the organisation to ensure that each product, part or appliance produced by the organisation or by its partners, or supplied from or subcontracted to outside parties, conforms to the applicable design data and is in condition for safe operation, and thus exercise the privileges set forth in 21A.163.

(b) The quality system shall contain:

1. As applicable within the scope of approval, control procedures for:

(i) Document issue, approval, or change.

(ii) Vendor and subcontractor assessment audit and control.

(iii) Verification that incoming products, parts, materials, and equipment, including items supplied new or used by buyers of products, are as specified in the applicable design data.

(iv) Identification and traceability.

(v) Manufacturing processes.

(vi) Inspection and testing, including production flight tests.

(vii) Calibration of tools, jigs, and test equipment.

(viii) Non conforming item control.

(ix) Airworthiness coordination with the applicant for, or holder of, the design approval.

(x) Records completion and retention.

(xi) Personnel competence and qualification.

(xii) Issue of airworthiness release documents.

(xiii) Handling, storage and packing.

(xiv) Internal quality audits and resulting corrective actions.

(xv) Work within the terms of approval performed at any location other than the approved facilities.

(xvi) Work carried out after completion of production but prior to delivery, to maintain the aircraft in a condition for safe operation.

(xvii) Permit to fly issue and correlated flight conditions approval.

The control procedures need to include specific provisions for any critical parts.

2. An independent quality assurance function to monitor compliance with, and adequacy of, the documented procedures of the quality system. This monitoring shall include a feedback system

to the person or group of persons referred to in 21A.145(c)(2) and ultimately to the manager referred to in 21A.145(c)(1) to ensure, as necessary, corrective action.

21A.143 Exposition

(a) The organisation shall submit to the Competent Authority a production organisation exposition providing the following information:

1. A statement signed by the accountable manager confirming that the production organisation exposition and any associated manuals which define the approved organisation's compliance with this Subpart will be complied with at all times.

2. The title(s) and names of managers accepted by the Competent Authority in accordance with 21A.145(c)(2).

3. The duties and responsibilities of the manager(s) as required by 21A.145(c)(2) including matters on which they may deal directly with the Competent Authority on behalf of the organisation.

4. An organisational chart showing associated chains of responsibility of the managers as required by 21A.145(c)(1) and (2).

5. A list of certifying staff as referred to in 21A.145(d).

6. A general description of man-power resources.

7. A general description of the facilities located at each address specified in the production organisation's certificate of approval.

8. A general description of the production organisation's scope of work relevant to the terms of approval.

9. The procedure for the notification of organisational changes to the Competent Authority.

10. The amendment procedure for the production organisation exposition.

11. A description of the quality system and the procedures as required by 21A.139(b)(1).

12. A list of those outside parties referred to in 21A.139(a).

(b) The production organisation exposition shall be amended as necessary to remain an up-todate description of the organisation, and copies of any amendments shall be supplied to the Competent Authority.

21A.145 Approval requirements

The production organisation shall demonstrate, on the basis of the information submitted in accordance with 21A.143 that:

(a) with regard to general approval requirements, facilities, working conditions, equipment and tools, processes and associated materials, number and competence of staff, and general organisation are adequate to discharge obligations under 21A.165.

(b) with regard to all necessary airworthiness, noise, fuel venting and exhaust emissions data:

1. The production organisation is in receipt of such data from the Agency, and from the holder of, or applicant for, the type-certificate, restricted type-certificate or design approval, to determine conformity with the applicable design data.

2. The production organisation has established a procedure to ensure that airworthiness, noise, fuel venting and exhaust emissions data are correctly incorporated in its production data.

3. Such data are kept up to date and made available to all personnel who need access to such data to perform their duties.

(c) with regard to management and staff:

1. A manager has been nominated by the production organisation, and is accountable to the Competent Authority. His or her responsibility within the organisation shall consist of ensuring that all production is performed to the required standards and that the production organisation is continuously in compliance with the data and procedures identified in the exposition referred to in 21A.143.

2. A person or group of persons have been nominated by the production organisation to ensure that the organisation is in compliance with the requirements of this Part, and are identified, together with the extent of their authority. Such person(s) shall act under the direct authority of the accountable manager referred to in subparagraph (1). The persons nominated shall be able to show the appropriate knowledge, background and experience to discharge their responsibilities.

3. Staff at all levels have been given appropriate authority to be able to discharge their allocated responsibilities and that there is full and effective coordination within the production organisation in respect of airworthiness, noise, fuel venting and exhaust emission data matters. (d) with regard to certifying staff, authorised by the production organisation to sign the documents issued under 21A.163 under the scope or terms of approval:

1. The knowledge, background (including other functions in the organisation), and experience of the certifying staff are appropriate to discharge their allocated responsibilities.

2. The production organisation maintains a record of all certifying staff which shall include details of the scope of their authorisation.

3. Certifying staff are provided with evidence of the scope of their authorisation.

21A.147 Changes to the approved production organisation

(a) After the issue of a production organisation approval, each change to the approved production organisation that is significant to the showing of conformity or to the airworthiness and characteristics of noise, fuel venting and exhaust emissions of the product, part or appliance, particularly changes to the quality system, shall be approved by the Competent Authority. An application for approval shall be submitted in writing to the Competent Authority and the organisation shall demonstrate to the Competent Authority before implementation of the change, that it will continue to comply with this Subpart.

(b) The Competent Authority shall establish the conditions under which a production organisation approved under this Subpart may operate during such changes unless the Competent Authority determines that the approval should be suspended.

21A.148 Changes of location

A change of the location of the manufacturing facilities of the approved production organisation shall be deemed of significance and therefore shall comply with 21A.147.

21A.149 Transferability

Except as a result of a change in ownership, which is deemed significant for the purposes of 21A.147, a production organisation approval is not transferable.

21A.151 Terms of approval

The terms of approval shall identify the scope of work, the products or the categories of parts and appliances, or both, for which the holder is entitled to exercise the privileges under 21A.163.

Those terms shall be issued as part of a production organisation approval.

21A.153 Changes to the terms of approval

Each change to the terms of approval shall be approved by the Competent Authority. An application for a change to the terms of approval shall be made in a form and manner established by the Competent Authority. The applicant shall comply with the applicable requirements of this Subpart.

21A.157 Investigations

A production organisation shall make arrangements that allow the Competent Authority to make any investigations, including investigations of partners and subcontractors, necessary to determine compliance and continued compliance with the applicable requirements of this Subpart.

21A.158 Findings

(a) When objective evidence is found showing non compliance of the holder of a production organisation approval with the applicable requirements of this Part, the finding shall be classified as follows:

1. A level one finding is any non-compliance with this Part which could lead to uncontrolled non-compliances with applicable design data and which could affect the safety of the aircraft.

2. A level two finding is any non-compliance with this Part which is not classified as level one.

(b) A level three finding is any item where it has been identified, by objective evidence, to contain potential problems that could lead to a non-compliance under paragraph (a).

(c) After receipt of notification of findings according to 21B.225,

1. In case of a level one finding, the holder of the production organisation approval shall demonstrate corrective action to the satisfaction of the Competent Authority within a period of no more than 21 working days after written confirmation of the finding,

2. In case of level two findings, the corrective action period granted by the Competent Authority shall be appropriate to the nature of the finding but in any case initially shall not be more than six months. In certain circumstances and subject to the nature of the finding the Competent Authority may extend the six month period subject to a satisfactory corrective action plan agreed by the Competent Authority.

3. A level three finding shall not require immediate action by the holder of the production organisation approval.

(d) In case of level one or level two findings, the production organisation approval may be subject to a partial or full limitation, suspension or revocation under 21B.245. The holder of the

production organisation approval shall provide confirmation of receipt of the notice of limitation, suspension or revocation of the production organisation approval in a timely manner.

21A.159 Duration and continued validity

(a) A production organisation approval shall be issued for an unlimited duration. It shall remain valid unless:

1. The production organisation fails to demonstrate compliance with the applicable requirements of this Subpart; or

2. The Competent Authority is prevented by the holder or any of its partners or subcontractors to perform the investigations in accordance with 21A.157; or

3. There is evidence that the production organisation cannot maintain satisfactory control of the manufacture of products, parts or appliances under the approval;

4. The production organisation no longer meets the requirements of 21A.133; or

5. the certificate has been surrendered or revoked under 21B.245.

(b) Upon surrender or revocation, the certificate shall be returned to the Competent Authority.

21A.163 Privileges

Pursuant to the terms of approval issued under 21A.135, the holder of a production organisation approval may:

(a) Perform production activities under this Part.

(b) In the case of complete aircraft and upon presentation of a Statement of Conformity (EASA Form 52) under 21A.174, obtain an aircraft certificate of airworthiness and a noise certificate without further showing.

(c) In the case of other products, parts or appliances issue authorised release certificates (EASA Form 1) without further showing.

(d) Maintain a new aircraft that it has produced and issue a certificate of release to service (EASA Form 53) in respect of that maintenance.

(e) under procedures agreed with its competent authority for production, for an aircraft it has produced and when the production organisation itself is controlling under its POA the configuration of the aircraft and is attesting conformity with the design conditions approved for the flight, to issue a permit to fly in accordance with point 21.A.711(c) including approval of the flight conditions in accordance with point 21.A.710(b).

21A.165 Obligations of the holder

The holder of a production organisation approval shall:

(a) Ensure that the production organisation exposition furnished in accordance with 21A.143 and the documents to which it refers, are used as basic working documents within the organisation.

(b) Maintain the production organisation in conformity with the data and procedures approved for the production organisation approval.

(c) 1. Determine that each completed aircraft conforms to the type design and is in condition for safe operation prior to submitting Statements of Conformity to the Competent Authority, or

2. Determine that other products, parts or appliances are complete and conform to the approved design data and are in condition for safe operation before issuing EASA Form 1 to certify airworthiness, and additionally in case of engines, determine according to data provided by the engine type-certificate holder that each completed engine is in compliance with the applicable emissions requirements as defined in 21A.18(b), current at the date of manufacture of the engine, to certify emissions compliance, or

3. Determine that other products, parts or appliances conform to the applicable data before issuing EASA Form 1 as a conformity certificate;

(d) Record all details of work carried out.

(e) Establish and maintain an internal occurrence reporting system in the interest of safety, to enable the collection and assessment of occurrence reports in order to identify adverse trends or to address deficiencies, and to extract reportable occurrences. This system shall include evaluation of relevant information relating to occurrences and the promulgation of related information.

(f) 1. Report to the holder of the type-certificate or design approval, all cases where products, parts or appliances have been released by the production organisation and subsequently identified to have possible deviations from the applicable design data, and investigate with the holder of the type-certificate or design approval in order to identify those deviations which could lead to an unsafe condition.

2. Report to the Agency and the competent authority of the Member State the deviations which could lead to an unsafe condition identified according to subparagraph (1). Such reports shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency under 21A.3(b)(2) or accepted by the competent authority of the Member State.

3. Where the holder of the production organisation approval is acting as a supplier to another production organisation, report also to that other organisation all cases where it has released products, parts or appliances to that organisation and subsequently identified them to have possible deviations from the applicable design data.

(g) Provide assistance to the holder of the type-certificate or design approval in dealing with any continuing airworthiness actions that are related to the products parts or appliances that have been produced.

(h) Establish an archiving system incorporating requirements imposed on its partners, suppliers and subcontractors, ensuring conservation of the data used to justify conformity of the products, parts or appliances. Such data shall be held at the disposal of the Competent Authority and be retained in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continuing airworthiness of the products, parts or appliances.

(i) Where, under its terms of approval, the holder issues a certificate of release to service, determine that each completed aircraft has been subjected to necessary maintenance and is in condition for safe operation, prior to issuing the certificate.

(j) where applicable, under the privilege of point 21.A.163(e), determine the conditions under which a permit to fly can be issued;

(k) where applicable, under the privilege of point 21.A.163(e), establish compliance with points 21.A.711(c) and (e) before issuing a permit to fly to an aircraft.

SUBPART H

AIRWORTHINESS CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED CERTIFICATES OF AIRWORTHINESS

21A.171 Scope

This Subpart establishes the procedure for issuing airworthiness certificates.

21A.172 Eligibility

Any natural or legal person under whose name an aircraft is registered or will be registered in a Member State ('Member State of registry'), or its representative, shall be eligible as an applicant for an airworthiness certificate for that aircraft under this Subpart.

21A.173 Classification

Airworthiness certificates shall be classified as follows:

(a) Certificates of airworthiness shall be issued to aircraft which conform to a type-certificate that has been issued in accordance with this Part.

(b) Restricted certificates of airworthiness shall be issued to aircraft:

1. which conform to a restricted type-certificate that has been issued in accordance with this Part; or

2. which have been shown to the Agency to comply with specific certification specifications ensuring adequate safety.

21A.174 Application

(a) Pursuant to 21A.172, an application for an airworthiness certificate shall be made in a form and manner established by the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

(b) Each application for a certificate of airworthiness or restricted certificate of airworthiness shall include:

1. the class of airworthiness certificate applied for;

- 2. with regard to new aircraft:
- (i) A statement of conformity:
- issued under 21A.163(b), or
- issued under 21A.130 and validated by the Competent Authority,

— or, for an imported aircraft, a statement signed by the exporting authority that the aircraft conforms to a design approved by the Agency

(ii) A weight and balance report with a loading schedule.

(iii) The flight manual, when required by the applicable airworthiness code for the particular aircraft.

3. with regard to used aircraft:

(i) originating from a Member State, an airworthiness review certificate issued in accordance with Part M.

(ii) originating from a non-member State:

— a statement by the competent authority of the State where the aircraft is, or was, registered, reflecting the airworthiness status of the aircraft on its register at time of transfer.

— a weight and balance report with a loading schedule.

— the flight manual when such material is required by the applicable airworthiness code for the particular aircraft.

— historical records to establish the production, modification, and maintenance standard of the aircraft, including all limitations associated with a restricted certificate of airworthiness under 21B.327(c).

— a recommendation for the issuance of a certificate of airworthiness or restricted certificate of airworthiness and an airworthiness review certificate following an airworthiness review in accordance with Part M.

(c) Unless otherwise agreed, the statements referred to in subparagraphs (b)(2)(i) and (b)(3)(ii) shall be issued no more than 60 days before presentation of the aircraft to the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21A.175 Language

The manuals, placards, listings, and instrument markings and other necessary information required by applicable certification specifications shall be presented in one or more of the official language(s) of the European Community acceptable to the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21A.177 Amendment or modification

An airworthiness certificate may be amended or modified only by the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21A.179 Transferability and re-issuance within Member States

(a) Where ownership of an aircraft has changed:

1. if it remains on the same register, the certificate of airworthiness, or the restricted certificate of airworthiness conforming to a restricted type-certificate only, shall be transferred together with the aircraft;

2. if the aircraft is registered in another Member State, the certificate of airworthiness, or the restricted certificate of airworthiness conforming to a restricted type-certificate only, shall be issued:

(i) upon presentation of the former certificate of airworthiness and of a valid airworthiness review certificate issued under Part M, and

(ii) when satisfying 21A.175.

(b) Where ownership of an aircraft has changed, and the aircraft has a restricted certificate of airworthiness not conforming to a restricted type-certificate, such airworthiness certificates shall be transferred together with the aircraft provided the aircraft remains on the same register, or issued only with the formal agreement of the competent authority of the Member State of registry to which it is transferred.

21A.180 Inspections

The holder of the airworthiness certificate shall provide access to the aircraft for which that airworthiness certificate has been issued upon request by the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21A.181 Duration and continued validity

(a) An airworthiness certificate shall be issued for an unlimited duration. It shall remain valid subject to:

1. compliance with the applicable type-design and continuing airworthiness requirements;

2. the aircraft remaining on the same register;

3. the type-certificate or restricted type-certificate under which it is issued not being previously invalidated under 21A.51.

4. the certificate not being surrendered or revoked under 21B.330.

(b) Upon surrender or revocation, the certificate shall be returned to the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21A.182 Aircraft identification

Each applicant for an airworthiness certificate under this Subpart shall demonstrate that its aircraft is identified in accordance with Subpart Q.

SUBPART I NOISE CERTIFICATES

21A.201 Scope

This Subpart establishes the procedure for issuing noise certificates.

21A.203 Eligibility

Any natural or legal person under whose name an aircraft is registered or will be registered in a Member State (Member State of registry), or its representative, shall be eligible as an applicant for a noise certificate for that aircraft under this Subpart.

21A.204 Application

(a) Pursuant to 21A.203, an application for a noise certificate shall be made in a form and manner established by the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

(b) Each application shall include:

- 1. with regard to new aircraft:
- (i) A statement of conformity:

— issued under 21A.163(b), or

— issued under 21A.130 and validated by the Competent Authority

— or, for an imported aircraft, a statement, signed by the exporting authority that the aircraft conforms to a design approved by the Agency, and

(ii) The noise information determined in accordance with the applicable noise requirements.

2. with regard to used aircraft:

(i) The noise information determined in accordance with the applicable noise requirements. (ii) Historical records to establish the production, modification, and maintenance standard of the aircraft.

(c) Unless otherwise agreed, the statements referred to in subparagraphs (b)(1) shall be issued no more than 60 days before presentation of the aircraft to the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21A.207 Amendment or modification

A noise certificate may be amended or modified only by the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21A.209 Transferability and re-issuance within Member States

Where ownership of an aircraft has changed:

(a) if the aircraft remains on the same register, the noise certificate shall be transferred together with the aircraft; or

(b) if the aircraft moves to the register of another Member State, the noise certificate shall be issued upon presentation of the former noise certificate.

21A.210 Inspections

The holder of the noise certificate shall provide access to the aircraft for which that noise certificate has been issued upon request by the competent authority of the Member State of registry or by the Agency for inspection.

21A.211 Duration and continued validity

(a) A noise certificate shall be issued for an unlimited duration. It shall remain valid subject to: 1. compliance with the applicable type-design, environmental protection and continuing airworthiness requirements;

and

2. the aircraft remaining on the same register; and

3. the type-certificate or restricted type-certificate under which it is issued not being previously invalidated under 21A.51.

4. the certificate not being surrendered or revoked under 21B.430.

(b) Upon surrender or revocation, the certificate shall be returned to the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

SUBPART J DESIGN ORGANISATION APPROVAL

21A.231 Scope

This Subpart establishes the procedure for the approval of design organisations and rules governing the rights and obligations of applicants for, and holders of, such approvals.

21A.233 Eligibility

Any natural or legal person ('organisation') shall be eligible as an applicant for an approval under this Subpart

(a) in accordance with 21A.14, 21A.112B, 21A.432B or 21A.602B; or

(b) for approval of minor changes or minor repair design, when requested for the purpose of obtaining privileges under 21A.263.

21A.234 Application

Each application for a design organisation approval shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency and shall include an outline of the information required by 21A.243, and the terms of approval requested to be issued under 21A.251.

21A.235 Issue of design organisation approval

An organisation shall be entitled to have a design organisation approval issued by the Agency when it has demonstrated compliance with the applicable requirements under this Subpart.

21A.239 Design assurance system

(a) The design organisation shall demonstrate that it has established and is able to maintain a design assurance system for the control and supervision of the design, and of design changes, of products, parts and appliances covered by the application. This design assurance system shall be such as to enable the organisation:

1. To ensure that the design of the products, parts and appliances or the design change thereof, comply with the applicable type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements; 2. To ensure that its responsibilities are properly discharged in accordance with:

(i) The appropriate provisions of this Part;

(ii) The terms of approval issued under 21A.251.

3. To independently monitor the compliance with, and adequacy of, the documented procedures of the system. This monitoring shall include a feed-back system to a person or a group of persons having the responsibility to ensure corrective actions.

(b) The design assurance system shall include an independent checking function of the showings of compliance on the basis of which the organisation submits compliance statements and associated documentation to the Agency.

(c) The design organisation shall specify the manner in which the design assurance system accounts for the acceptability of the parts or appliances designed or the tasks performed by partners or subcontractor according to methods which are the subject of written procedures.

21A.243 Data

(a) The design organisation shall furnish a handbook to the Agency describing, directly or by cross-reference, the organisation, the relevant procedures and the products or changes to products to be designed.

(b) Where any parts or appliances or any changes to the products are designed by partner organisations or subcontractors, the handbook shall include a statement of how the design organisation is able to give, for all parts and appliances, the assurance of compliance required by 21A.239(b), and shall contain, directly or by cross-reference, descriptions and information on the design activities and organisation of those partners or subcontractors, as necessary to establish this statement.

(c) The handbook shall be amended as necessary to remain an up-to-date description of the organisation, and copies of amendments shall be supplied to the Agency.

(d) The design organisation shall furnish a statement of the qualifications and experience of the management staff and other persons responsible for making decisions affecting airworthiness and environmental protection in the organisation.

21A.245 Approval requirements

The design organisation shall demonstrate, on the basis of the information submitted in accordance with 21A.243 that, in addition to complying with 21A.239:

(a) The staff in all technical departments are of sufficient numbers and experience and have been given appropriate authority to be able to discharge their allocated responsibilities and that these, together with the accommodation, facilities and equipment are adequate to enable the staff to achieve the airworthiness and environmental protection objectives for the product.

(b) There is full and efficient coordination between departments and within departments in respect of airworthiness and environmental protection matters.

21A.247 Changes in design assurance system

After the issue of a design organisation approval, each change to the design assurance system that is significant to the showing of compliance or to the airworthiness and environmental protection of the product, shall be approved by the Agency. An application for approval shall be submitted in writing to the Agency and the design organisation shall demonstrate to the Agency, on the basis of submission of proposed changes to the handbook, and before implementation of the change, that it will continue to comply with this Subpart after implementation.

21A.249 Transferability

Except as a result of a change in ownership, which is deemed significant for the purposes of 21A.247, a design organisation approval is not transferable.

21A.251 Terms of approval

The terms of approval shall identify the types of design work, the categories of products, parts and appliances for which the design organisation holds a design organisation approval, and the functions and duties that the organisation is approved to perform in regard to the airworthiness and characteristics of noise, fuel venting and exhaust emissions of products. For design organisation approval covering type-certification or ETSO authorisation for Auxiliary Power Unit (APU), the terms of approval shall contain in addition the list of products or APU. Those terms shall be issued as part of a design organisation approval.

21A.253 Changes to the terms of approval

Each change to the terms of approval shall be approved by the Agency. An application for a change to the terms of approval shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency. The design organisation shall comply with the applicable requirements of this Subpart.

21A.257 Investigations

(a) The design organisation shall make arrangements that allow the Agency to make any investigations, including investigations of partners and subcontractors, necessary to determine compliance and continued compliance with the applicable requirements of this Subpart.

(b) The design organisation shall allow the Agency to review any report and make any inspection and perform or witness any flight and ground test necessary to check the validity of the compliance statements submitted by the applicant under 21A.239(b).

21A.258 Findings

(a) When objective evidence is found showing non-compliance of the holder of a design organisation approval with the applicable requirements of this Part, the finding shall be classified as follows:

1. A level one finding is any non-compliance with this Part which could lead to uncontrolled non-compliances with applicable requirements and which could affect the safety of the aircraft. 2. A level two finding is any non-compliance with this Part which is not classified as level one.

(b) A level three finding is any item where it has been identified, by objective evidence, to contain potential problems that could lead to a non-compliance under paragraph (a).

(c) After receipt of notification of findings under the applicable administrative procedures established by the Agency,

1. In case of a level one finding, the holder of the design organisation approval shall demonstrate corrective action to the satisfaction of the Agency within a period of no more than 21 working days after written confirmation of the finding;

2. In case of level two findings, the corrective action period granted by the Agency shall be appropriate to the nature of the finding but in any case initially shall not be more than six months. In certain circumstances and subject to the nature of the finding the Agency may extend the six month period subject to a satisfactory corrective action plan agreed by the Agency.

3. A level three finding shall not require immediate action by the holder of the design organisation approval.

(d) In case of level one or level two findings, the design organisation approval may be subject to a partial or full suspension or revocation under the applicable administrative procedures established by the Agency. The holder of the design organisation approval shall provide confirmation of receipt of the notice of suspension or revocation of the design organisation approval in a timely manner.

21A.259 Duration and continued validity

(a) A design organisation approval shall be issued for an unlimited duration. It shall remain valid unless:

1. The design organisation fails to demonstrate compliance with the applicable requirements of this Subpart;

2. The Agency is prevented by the holder or any of its partners or subcontractors to perform the investigations in accordance with 21A.257;

3. There is evidence that the design assurance system cannot maintain satisfactory control and supervision of the design of products or changes thereof under the approval;

4. the certificate has been surrendered or revoked under the applicable administrative procedures established by the Agency.

(b) Upon surrender or revocation, the certificate shall be returned to the Agency.

21A.263 Privileges

(a) The holder of a design organisation approval shall be entitled to perform design activities under this Part and within its scope of approval.

(b) Subject to 21A.257(b), compliance documents submitted by the applicant for the purpose of obtaining:

- 1. approval of the conditions under which a permit to fly can be issued; or
- 2. a type-certificate or approval of a major change to a type design; or
- 3. a supplemental type-certificate; or
- 4. an ETSO authorisation under 21A.602(b)(1);
- 5. a major repair design approval;

shall be accepted by the Agency without further verification.

(c) The holder of a design organisation approval shall be entitled, within its terms of approval and under the relevant procedures of the design assurance system:

1. to classify changes to type design and repairs as 'major' or 'minor'.

2. to approve minor changes to type design and minor repairs.

3. to issue information or instructions containing the following statement: 'The technical content of this document is approved under the authority of DOA nr.EASA.21. J. [XXXX].'

4. to approve documentary changes to the aircraft flight manual, and issue such changes containing the following statement: 'Revision nr. [YY] to AFM (or to issued changes) nr. [ZZ] is approved under the authority of DOA nr. EASA.21. J. [XXXX].'

5. to approve the design of major repairs to products for which it holds the type-certificate or the supplemental type-certificate.

6. To approve the conditions under which a permit to fly can be issued in accordance with 21A.710(a)(2),

(i)except for initial flights of:

- a new type of aircraft, or
- —an aircraft modified by a change that is or would be classified as a significant major change or significant STC, or
- ---an aircraft whose flight and/or piloting characteristics may have been significantly modified;
- (ii) except for permits to fly to be issued for the purpose of 21A.701(a)(15).
- 7.To issue a permit to fly in accordance with 21A.711(b) for an aircraft it has designed or modified or for which in accordance with 21A.263(c)6 it approved conditions under which permit to fly can be issued, and when the design organisation itself is controlling under its DOA the configuration of the aircraft and is attesting conformity with the design conditions approved for the flight.

21A.265 Obligations of the holder

The holder of a design organisation approval shall:

(a) Maintain the handbook in conformity with the design assurance system;

(b) Ensure that this handbook is used as a basic working document within the organisation;

(c) Determine that the design of products, or changes or repairs thereof, as applicable, comply with applicable requirements and have no unsafe feature;

(d) Except for minor changes or repairs approved under the privilege of 21A.263, provide to the Agency statements and associated documentation confirming compliance with paragraph (c);

(e) Provide to the Agency information or instructions related to required actions under 21A.3B;

- (f)Where applicable, under the privilege of 21A.263(c)(6), determine the conditions under which a permit to fly can be issued.
- (g)Where applicable, under the privilege of 21A.263(c)(7), establish compliance with 21A.711(b) and (d) before issuing a permit to fly to an aircraft.

SUBPART K PARTS AND APPLIANCES

21A.301 Scope

This Subpart establishes the procedure relating to the approval of parts and appliances.

21A.303 Compliance with applicable requirements

The showing of compliance of parts and appliances to be installed in a type-certificated product shall be made:

(a) In conjunction with the type-certification procedures of Subpart B, D or E for the product in which it is to be installed; or

(b) Where applicable, under the ETSO authorisation procedures of Subpart O; or

(c) In the case of standard parts, in accordance with officially recognised Standards.

21A.305 Approval of parts and appliances

In all cases where the approval of a part or appliance is explicitly required by Community law or Agency measures, the part or appliance shall comply with the applicable ETSO or with the specifications recognised as equivalent by the Agency in the particular case.

21A.307 Release of parts and appliances for installation

No part or appliance (except a standard part), shall be eligible for installation in a type-certificated product unless it is:

(a) Accompanied by an authorised release certificate (EASA Form 1), certifying that the element is produced in accordance with approved project data and that is ready to be used safely;

(b) Marked in accordance with Subpart Q.

(SUBPART L — NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART M REPAIRS

21A.431 Scope

(a) This Subpart establishes the procedure for the approval of repair design, and establishes the rights and obligations of the applicants for, and holders of, those approvals.

(b) A 'repair' means elimination of damage and/or restoration to an airworthy condition following initial release into service by the manufacturer of any product, part or appliance.

(c) Elimination of damage by replacement of parts or appliances without the necessity for design activity shall be considered as a maintenance task and shall therefore require no approval under this Part.

(d) A repair to an ETSO article shall be treated as a change to the ETSO design and shall be processed in accordance with 21A.611.

21A.432 Eligibility

(a) Any natural or legal person that has demonstrated, or is in the process of demonstrating, its capability under 21A.432 B shall be eligible as an applicant for a major repair design approval under the conditions laid down in this Subpart.

(b) Any natural or legal person shall be eligible to apply for approval of a minor repair design.

21A.432B Demonstration of capability

(a) An applicant for a major repair design approval shall demonstrate its capability by holding a design organisation approval, issued by the Agency in accordance with Subpart J.

(b) By way of derogation from paragraph (a), as an alternative procedure to demonstrate its capability, an applicant may seek Agency agreement for the use of procedures setting out the specific design practices, resources and sequence of activities necessary to comply with this Subpart.

21A.433 Repair design

(a) The applicant for approval of a repair design shall:

1. Show compliance with the type-certification basis and environmental protection requirements incorporated by reference in the type-certificate or supplemental type-certificate, as applicable, or those in effect on the date of application (for repair design approval), plus any amendments to those certification specifications or special conditions the Agency finds necessary to establish a level of safety equal to that established by the type-certification basis incorporated by reference in the type-certificate or supplemental type-certificate.

2. Submit all necessary substantiation data, when requested by the Agency.

3. Declare compliance with the certification specifications and environmental protection requirements of subparagraph (a)(1).

(b) Where the applicant is not the type-certificate or supplemental type-certificate holder, as applicable, the applicant may comply with the requirements of paragraph (a) through the use of its own resources or through an arrangement with the type-certificate or supplemental type-certificate holder as applicable.

21A.435 Classification of repairs

(a) A repair may be 'major' or 'minor'. The classification shall be made in accordance with the criteria of 21A.91 for a change in the type design.

(b) A repair shall be classified 'major' or 'minor' under paragraph (a) either:

1. By the Agency, or

2. By an appropriately approved design organisation under a procedure agreed with the Agency.

21A.437 Issue of a repair design approval

When it has been declared and has been shown that the repair design meets the applicable certification specifications and environmental protection requirements of 21A.433(a)(1), it shall be approved:

(a) by the Agency, or

(b) by an appropriately approved organisation that is also the type-certificate or the supplemental type-certificate holder, under a procedure agreed with the Agency, or

(c) for minor repairs only, by an appropriately approved design organisation under a procedure agreed with the Agency.

21A.439 Production of repair parts

Parts and appliances to be used for the repair shall be manufactured in accordance with production data based upon all the necessary design data as provided by the repair design approval holder:

(a) Under Subpart F, or

- (b) By an organisation appropriately approved in accordance with Subpart G, or
- (c) By an appropriately approved maintenance organisation.

21A.441 Repair embodiment

(a) The embodiment of a repair shall be made by an appropriately approved maintenance organisation, or by a production organisation appropriately approved in accordance with Subpart G, under 21A.163 privilege.

(b) The design organisation shall transmit to the organisation performing the repair all the necessary installation instructions.

21A.443 Limitations

A repair design may be approved subject to limitations, in which case the repair design approval shall include all necessary instructions and limitations. These instructions and limitations shall be transmitted by the repair design approval holder to the operator in accordance with a procedure agreed with the Agency.

21A.445 Unrepaired damage

(a) When a damaged product, part or appliance, is left unrepaired, and is not covered by previously approved data, the evaluation of the damage for its airworthiness consequences may only be made

1. by the Agency, or

2. by an appropriately approved design organisation under a procedure agreed with the Agency. Any necessary limitations shall be processed in accordance with the procedures of 21A.443.

(b) Where the organisation evaluating the damage under paragraph (a) is neither the Agency nor the type-certificate or supplemental type-certificate holder, this organisation shall justify that the information on which the evaluation is based is adequate either from its organisation's own resources or through an arrangement with the type-certificate or supplemental type-certificate holder, or manufacturer, as applicable.

21A.447 Record keeping

For each repair, all relevant design information, drawings, test reports, instructions and limitations possibly issued in accordance with 21A.443, justification for classification and evidence of the design approval, shall:

(a) be held by the repair design approval holder at the disposal of the Agency, and

(b) be retained by the repair design approval holder in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continued airworthiness of the repaired products, parts or appliances.

21A.449 Instructions for continued airworthiness

(a) The holder of the repair design approval shall furnish at least one complete set of those changes to the instructions for continued airworthiness which result from the design of the repair, comprising descriptive data and accomplishment instructions prepared in accordance with the applicable requirements, to each operator of aircraft incorporating the repair. The repaired product, part or appliance may be released into service before the changes to those instructions have been completed, but this shall be for a limited service period, and in agreement with the Agency.

Those changes to the instructions shall be made available on request to any other person required to comply with any of the terms of those changes to the instructions. The availability of some manual or portion of the changes to the instructions for continued airworthiness, dealing with overhaul or other forms of heavy maintenance, may be delayed until after the product has entered into service, but shall be available before any of the products reaches the relevant age or flight — hours/cycles.

(b) If updates to those changes to the instructions for continued airworthiness are issued by the holder of the repair design approval after the repair has been first approved, these updates shall be furnished to each operator and shall be made available on request to any other person required to comply with any of the terms of those changes to the instructions. A programme showing how updates to the changes to the instructions for continued airworthiness are distributed shall be submitted to the Agency.

21A.451 Obligations and EPA marking

(a) Each holder of a major repair design approval shall:

1. undertake the obligations:

(i) laid down in 21A.3, 21A.3B, 21A.4, 21A.439, 21A.441, 21A.443, 21A.447 and 21A.449;

(ii) implicit in the collaboration with the type-certificate or supplemental type-certificate holder, or both, under 21A.433 (b), as appropriate.

2. specify the marking, including EPA ('European Part Approval') letters, in accordance with 21A.804(a).

(b) Except for type-certificate holders for which 21A.44 applies, the holder of a minor repair design approval shall:

1. undertake the obligations laid down in 21A.4, 21A.447 and 21A.449; and

2. specify the marking, including EPA letters, in accordance with 21A.804(a).

(SUBPART N — NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART O EUROPEAN TECHNICAL STANDARD ORDER AUTHORISATIONS

21A.601 Scope

(a) This Subpart establishes the procedure for issuing ETSO (European Technical Standard Order) authorisations and the rules governing the rights and obligations of applicants for, or holders of, such authorisations.

21A.602A Eligibility

Any natural or legal person that produces or is preparing to produce an ETSO article, and that has demonstrated, or is in the process of demonstrating, its capability under 21A.602B shall be eligible as an applicant for an ETSO authorisation.

21A.602B Demonstration of capability

Any applicant for an ETSO authorisation shall demonstrate its capability as follows:

(a) for production, by holding a production organisation approval, issued in accordance with Subpart G, or through compliance with Subpart F procedures; and

(b) for design:

1. for an Auxiliary Power Unit, by holding a design organisation approval, issued by the Agency in accordance with Subpart J;

2. for all other articles, by using procedures setting out the specific design practices, resources and sequence of activities necessary to comply with this Part.

21A.603 Application

(a) An application for an ETSO authorisation shall be made in a form and manner established by the Agency and shall include an outline of the information required by 21A.605.

(b) When a series of minor changes in accordance with 21A.611 is anticipated, the applicant shall set forth in its application the basic model number of the article and the associated part numbers with open brackets after it to denote that suffix change letters or numbers (or combinations of them) will be added from time to time.

21A.604 ETSO Authorisation for an Auxiliary Power Unit (APU)

With regard to ETSO authorisation for an Auxiliary Power Unit:

(a) 21A.15, 21A.16B, 21A.17, 21A.20, 21A.21, 21A.31, 21A.33, 21A.44 shall apply by way of derogation from 21A.603, 21A.606(c), 21A.610 and 21A.615, except that an ETSO Authorisation shall be issued in accordance with 21A.606 instead of the type-certificate;

(b) Subpart D or Subpart E of this Part 21 is applicable for the approval of design changes by way of derogation from 21A.611. When Subpart E is used, a separate ETSO authorisation shall be issued instead of a supplemental typecertificate.

21A.605 Data requirements

The applicant shall submit the following documents, to the Agency:

(a) A statement of compliance certifying that the applicant has met the requirements of this Subpart.

(b) A Declaration of Design and Performance (DDP).

(c) One copy of the technical data required in the applicable ETSO.

(d) The exposition (or a reference to the exposition) referred to in 21A.143 for the purpose of obtaining an appropriate production organisation approval under Subpart G or the manual (or a reference to the manual) referred to in 21A.125A(b) for the purpose of manufacturing under Subpart F without production organisation approval.

(e) For an APU, the handbook (or a reference to the handbook) referred to in 21A.243 for the purpose of obtaining an appropriate design organisation approval under Subpart J.

(f) for all other articles, the procedures referred to in 21A.602B(b)(2).

21A.606 Issue of ETSO authorisation

The applicant shall be entitled to have an ETSO authorisation issued by the Agency after:

(a) demonstrating its capability in accordance with 21A.602B; and

(b) demonstrating that the article complies with the technical conditions of the applicable ETSO, and submitting the corresponding statement of compliance.

(c) explicitly declaring that it is able to comply with 21A.609.

21A.607 ETSO authorisation privileges

The holder of an ETSO authorisation is entitled to produce and to mark the article with the appropriate ETSO marking.

21A.608 Declaration of Design and Performance (DDP)

(a) The DDP shall contain at least the following information:

1. Information corresponding to 21A.31(a) and (b), identifying the article and its design and testing standard.

2. The rated performance of the article, where appropriate, either directly or by reference to other supplementary documents.

- 3. A statement of compliance certifying that the article has met the appropriate ETSO.
- 4. Reference to relevant test reports.
- 5. Reference to the appropriate Maintenance, Overhaul and Repair Manuals.
- 6. The levels of compliance, where various levels of compliance are allowed by the ETSO.
- 7. List of deviations accepted in accordance with 21A.610.

(b) The DDP shall be endorsed with the date and signature of the holder of the ETSO authorisation, or its authorised representative.

21A.609 Obligations of holders of ETSO authorisations

The holder of an ETSO authorisation under this Subpart shall:

(a) Manufacture each article in accordance with Subpart G or Subpart F that ensures that each completed article conforms to its design data and is safe for installation;

(b) Prepare and maintain, for each model of each article for which an ETSO authorisation has been issued, a current file of complete technical data and records in accordance with 21A.613; (c) Prepare, maintain and update master copies of all manuals required by the applicable airworthiness specifications for the article;

(d) Make available to users of the article and to the Agency on request those maintenance, overhaul and repair manuals necessary for the usage and maintenance of the article, and changes to those manuals;

(e) Mark each article in accordance with 21A.807; and

- (f) Comply with 21A.3, 21A.3B and 21A.4.
- (g) Continue to meet the qualification requirements of 21A.602B.

21A.610 Approval for deviation

(a) Each manufacturer who requests approval to deviate from any performance standard of an ETSO shall demonstrate that the standards from which a deviation is requested are compensated for by factors or design features providing an equivalent level of safety.

(b) The request for approval to deviate, together with all pertinent data, shall be submitted to the Agency.

21A.611 Design changes

(a) The holder of the ETSO authorisation may make minor design changes (any change other than a major change) without further authorisation by the Agency. In this case, the changed article keeps the original model number (part number changes or amendments shall be used to identify minor changes) and the holder shall forward to the Agency any revised data that are necessary for compliance with 21A.603(b).

(b) Any design change by the holder of the ETSO authorisation that is extensive enough to require a substantially complete investigation to determine compliance with an ETSO is a major change. Before making such a change, the holder shall assign a new type or model designation to the article and apply for a new authorisation under 21A.603.

(c) No design change by any natural or legal person other than the holder of the ETSO authorisation who submitted the statement of compliance for the article is eligible for approval under this Subpart O unless the person seeking the approval applies under 21A.603 for a separate ETSO authorisation.

21A.613 Record keeping

Further to the record keeping requirements appropriate to or associated with the quality system, all relevant design information, drawings and test reports, including inspection records for the article tested, shall be held at the disposal of the Agency and shall be retained in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continued airworthiness of the article and of the type-certificated product in which it is fitted.

21A.615 Inspection by the Agency

Upon a request of the Agency, each applicant for, or holder of an ETSO authorisation for an article shall allow the Agency to:

(a) Witness any tests.

(b) Inspect the technical data files on that article.

21A.619 Duration and continued validity

(a) An ETSO authorisation shall be issued for an unlimited duration. It shall remain valid unless: 1. The conditions required when ETSO authorisation was granted are no longer being observed; or

2. The obligations of the holder specified in 21A.609 are no longer being discharged;

3. The article has proved to give rise to unacceptable hazards in service;

4. the authorisation has been surrendered or revoked under the applicable administrative procedures established by the Agency.

(b) Upon surrender or revocation, the certificate shall be returned to the Agency.

21A.621 Transferability

Except for a change in ownership of the holder, which shall be regarded as a change of significance, and shall therefore comply with 21A.147 and 21A.247 as applicable, an ETSO authorisation issued under this Part is not transferable.

SUBPART P

PERMIT TO FLY

21A.701 Scope

(a) Permits to fly shall be issued in accordance with this Subpart to aircraft that do not meet, or have not been shown to meet, applicable airworthiness requirements but are capable of safe flight under defined conditions and for the following purposes:

- 1. development;
- 2. showing compliance with regulations or certification specifications;
- 3. design organisations or production organisations crew training;
- 4. production flight testing of new production aircraft;
- 5. flying aircraft under production between production facilities;
- 6. flying the aircraft for customer acceptance;
- 7. delivering or exporting the aircraft;
- 8. flying the aircraft for Authority acceptance;
- 9. market survey, including customer's crew training;
- 10. exhibition and air show;
- 11.flying the aircraft to a location where maintenance or airworthiness review are to be performed, or to a place of storage;
- 12.flying an aircraft at a weight in excess of its maximum certificated takeoff weight for flight beyond the normal range over water, or over land areas where adequate landing facilities or appropriate fuel is not available;
- 13. record breaking, air racing or similar competition;
- 14.flying aircraft meeting the applicable airworthiness requirements before conformity to the environmental requirements has been found;
- 15.for non-commercial flying activity on individual non-complex aircraft or types for which a certificate of airworthiness or restricted certificate of airworthiness is not appropriate.

(b) This Subpart defines the procedure under which permits to fly are issued and related flight conditions are approved and it precribes the rights and the obbligations of the applicants and holders of this permits and of the approvals of flight conditions.

21A.703 Eligibility

(a)Any natural or legal person shall be eligible as an applicant for a permit to fly except for a permit to fly requested for the purpose of 21A.701(a)(15) where the applicant shall be the owner.

(b) Any natural or legal person shall be also eligible for application for the approval of the flight conditions.

21A.705 Competent Authority

Notwithstanding 21.1, for the purpose of this Subpart, the "Competent Authority" shall be:

- (a) the authority designated by the Member State of registry; or
- (b) for unregistered aircraft, the authority designated by the Member State which prescribed the identification marks.

21A.707 Application for permit to fly

- (a)Pursuant to 21A.703 and when the applicant has not been granted the privilege to issue a permit to fly, an application for a permit to fly shall be made to the Competent Authority in a form and manner established by that authority.
- (b)Each application for a permit to fly shall include:
 - 1. the purpose of the flight, in accordance with 21A.701;
 - 2.the ways in which the aircraft does not comply with the applicable airworthiness requirements;
 - 3. the flight conditions approved in accordance with 21A.710.
- (c)Where the flight conditions are not approved at the time of application for a permit to fly, an application for approval of the flight conditions shall be made in accordance with 21A.709.

21A.708 Flight conditions

Flight conditions include:

(a) the configuration for which the permit to fly is requested;

(b)any condition or restriction necessary for safe operation of the aircraft, including:

- 1.the conditions or restrictions put on itineraries or airspace, or both, required for the flight(s);
- 2. the conditions and restrictions put on the flight crew to fly the aircraft;
- 3. the restrictions regarding carriage of persons other than flight crew;
- 4. the operating limitations, specific procedures or technical conditions to be met;
- 5. the specific flight test programme (if applicable);
- 6.the specific continuing airworthiness arrangements including maintenance instructions and regime under which they will be performed;
- (c)the substantiation that the aircraft is capable of safe flight under the conditions or restrictions of subparagraph (b);
- (d)the method used for the control of the aircraft configuration, in order to remain within the established conditions.

21A.709 Application for approval of flight conditions

- (a)Pursuant to 21A.707(c) and when the applicant has not been granted the privilege to approve the flight conditions, an application for approval of the flight conditions shall be made:
 - 1.when approval of the flight conditions is related to the safety of the design, to the Agency in a form and manner established by the Agency; or
 - 2.when approval of the flight conditions is not related to the safety of the design, to the Competent Authority in a form and manner established by that authority.

(b)Each application for approval of the flight conditions shall include:

- 1. the proposed flight conditions;
- 2. the documentation supporting these conditions;
- 3.a declaration that the aircraft is capable of safe flight under the conditions or restrictions of paragraph 21A.708(b).

21A.710 Approval of flight conditions

- (a)When approval of the flight conditions is related to the safety of the design, the flight conditions shall be approved by:
 - 1. the Agency; or

2.an appropriately approved design organisation, under the privilege of 21A.263(c)(6).

- (b)When approval of the flight conditions is not related to the safety of the design, the flight conditions shall be approved by the Competent Authority, or the appropriately approved organisation that will also issue the permit to fly.
- (c)Before approving the flight conditions, the Agency, the Competent Authority or the approved organisation must be satisfied that the aircraft is capable of safe flight under the specified conditions and restrictions. The Agency or the Competent Authority may make or require the applicant to make any necessary inspections or tests for that purpose.

21A.711 Issue of a permit to fly

- (a)The Competent Authority shall issue a permit to fly (EASA Form 20a, see Appendix) under the conditions prescribed in 21B.525.
- (b)An appropriately approved design organisation may issue a permit to fly (EASA Form 20b, see Appendix) under the privilege granted under 21A.263(c)(7), when the conditions of 21A.708 have been approved in accordance with 21A.710.
- (c)An appropriately approved production organisation may issue a permit to fly (EASA Form 20b, see Appendix) under the privilege granted under 21A.163(e), when the conditions of 21A.708 have been approved in accordance with 21A.710.

(d) An appropriately approved continuous airworthiness organisation may issue a permit to fly (EASA Form 20b, see Appendix) under the privilege granted under M.A.711 of the Annex 1 (Part M) of the Regulation (EC) 2042/2003, when the flight conditions specified in 21A.708 have been approved in accordance with 21A.710.

- (e)The permit to fly shall specify the purpose and any conditions and restrictions approved under 21A.710.
- (f)For permits issued under subparagraph (b), (c) or (d), a copy of the permit to fly and correlated flight conditions shall be submitted as soon as possible, but within not more than 3 days, to the Competent Authority.
- (g)Upon evidence that any of the conditions specified in 21A.723(a) are not met for a permit to fly that an organisation has issued pursuant to subparagraph (b), (c) or (d), that organisation shall revoke that permit to fly and shall inform immediately the Competent Authority.

21A.713 Changes

- (a)Any change that invalidates the flight conditions or associated substantiation established for the permit to fly shall be approved in accordance with 21A.710. When relevant an application shall be made in accordance with 21A.709.
- (b)A change affecting the content of the permit to fly requires the issuance of a new permit to fly in accordance with 21A.711.

21A.715 Language

The manuals, placards, listings, and instrument markings and other necessary information required by applicable certification specifications shall be presented in one or more of the official language(s) of the European Community acceptable to the Competent Authority.

21A.719 Transferability

- (a) A permit to fly is not transferable.
- (b)Notwithstanding subparagraph (a) for a permit to fly issued for the purpose of 21A.701(a)(15), where ownership of an aircraft has changed, the permit to fly shall be transferred together with the aircraft provided the aircraft remains on the same register, or issued only with the agreement of the competent authority of the Member State of registry to which it is transferred.

21A.721 Inspections

The holder of, or the applicant for, a permit to fly shall provide access to the aircraft concerned at the request of the Competent Authority.

21A.723 Duration and continued validity

- (a)A permit to fly shall be issued for a maximum of 12 months and shall remain valid subject to:
 - 1.compliance with the conditions and restrictions of 21A.711(e) associated to the permit to fly;
 - 2. the permit to fly not being surrendered by the holder or revoked ;
 - 3. the aircraft remaining on the same register.
- (b)Notwithstanding subparagraph (a), a permit to fly issued for the purpose of 21A.701(a)(15) may be issued for unlimited duration.
- (c)Upon surrender or revocation, the permit to fly shall be returned to the Competent Authority.

21A.725 Renewal of permit to fly

Renewal of the permit to fly shall be processed as a change in accordance with 21A.713.

21A.727 Obligations of the holder of a permit to fly

The holder of a permit to fly shall ensure that all the conditions and restrictions associated with the permit to fly are satisfied and maintained.

21A.729 Recordkeeping

- (a)All documents produced to establish and justify the flight conditions shall be held by the holder of the approval of the flight conditions at the disposal of the Agency and Competent Authority and shall be retained in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continued airworthiness of the aircraft.
- (b)All documents associated to the issue of permits to fly under the privilege of approved organisations, including inspection records, documents supporting the approval of flight conditions and the permit to fly itself, shall be held by the related approved organisation at the disposal of the Agency or the Competent Authority and shall be retained in order to provide the information necessary to ensure the continued airworthiness of the aircraft.

SUBPART Q IDENTIFICATION OF PRODUCTS, PARTS AND APPLIANCES

21A.801 Identification of products

(a) The identification of products shall include the following information:

- 1. Manufacturer's name.
- 2. Product designation.
- 3. Manufacturer's Serial number.
- 4. Any other information the Agency finds appropriate.

(b) Any natural or legal person that manufactures an aircraft or engine under Subpart G or Subpart F shall identify that aircraft or engine by means of a fireproof plate that has the information specified in paragraph (a) marked on it by etching, stamping, engraving, or other approved method of fireproof marking. The identification plate shall be secured in such a manner that it is accessible and legible, and will not likely be defaced or removed during normal service, or lost or destroyed in an accident.

(c) Any natural or legal person that manufactures a propeller, propeller blade, or propeller hub under Subpart G or Subpart F shall identify it by means of a plate, stamping, engraving, etching or other approved method of fireproof identification that is placed on it on a non-critical surface, contains the information specified in paragraph (a), and will not likely be defaced or removed during normal service or lost or destroyed in an accident.

(d) For manned free balloons, the identification plate prescribed in paragraph (b) shall be secured to the balloon envelope and shall be located, if practicable, where it is legible to the operator when the balloon is inflated. In addition, the basket and any heater assembly shall be permanently and legibly marked with the manufacturer's name, part number, or equivalent, and serial number, or equivalent.

21A.803 Handling of identification data

(a) No person shall remove, change, or place identification information referred to in 21A.801(a) on any aircraft, engine, propeller, propeller blade, or propeller hub, or in 21A.807(a) on an APU, without the approval of the Agency.

(b) No person shall remove or install any identification plate referred to in 21A.801, or in 21A.807 for an APU, without the approval of the Agency.

(c) By way of derogation from paragraphs (a) and (b), any natural or legal person performing maintenance work under the applicable associated implementing rules may, in accordance with methods, techniques and practices established by the Agency:

1. Remove, change, or place the identification information referred to in 21A.801(a) on any aircraft, engine, propeller, propeller blade, or propeller hub, or in 21A.807(a) on an APU; or 2. Remove an identification plate referred to in 21A.801, or 21A.807 for an APU, when necessary during maintenance operations.

(d) No person shall install an identification plate removed in accordance with subparagraph (c)(2) on any aircraft, engine, propeller, propeller blade, or propeller hub other than the one from which it was removed.

21A.804 Identification of parts and appliances

(a) Each manufacturer of a part or appliance shall permanently and legibly mark the part or appliance with:

1. a name, trademark, or symbol identifying the manufacturer, as defined in the applicable design data; and

2. the part number, as defined in the applicable design data; and

3. the letters EPA (European Part Approval) for parts or appliances produced in accordance with approved design data not belonging to the type-certificate holder of the related product, except for ETSO articles.

(b) By way of derogation from paragraph (a), if the Agency agrees that a part or appliance is too small or that it is otherwise impractical to mark a part or appliance with any of the information required by paragraph (a), the authorised release document accompanying the part or appliance or its container shall include the information that could not be marked on the part.

21A.805 Identification of critical parts

In addition to the requirement of 21A.804, each manufacturer of a part to be fitted on a typecertificated product which has been identified as a critical part shall permanently and legibly mark that part with a part number and a serial number.

21A.807 Identification of ETSO articles

(a) Each holder of an ETSO authorisation under Subpart O shall permanently and legibly mark each article with the following information:

- 1. The name and address of the manufacturer;
- 2. The name, type, part number or model designation of the article;
- 3. The serial number or the date of manufacture of the article or both; and
- 4. The applicable ETSO number.

(b) By way of derogation from paragraph (a), if the Agency agrees that a part is too small or that it is otherwise impractical to mark a part with any of the information required by paragraph (a), the authorised release document accompanying the part or its container shall include the information that could not be marked on the part.

(c) Each person who manufactures an APU under Subpart G or Subpart F shall identify that APU by means of a fireproof plate that has the information specified in paragraph (a) marked on it by etching, stamping, engraving, or other approved method of fireproof marking. The identification plate shall be secured in such a manner that it is accessible and legible, and will not likely be defaced or removed during normal service, or lost or destroyed in an accident.

SECTION B

PROCEDURES FOR COMPETENT AUTHORITIES

SUBPART A GENERAL PROVISIONS

21B.5 Scope

(a) This Section establishes the procedure for the competent authority of the Member State when exercising its tasks and responsibilities concerned with the issuance, maintenance, amendment, suspension and revocation of certificates, approvals and authorisations referred to in this Part.

(b) The Agency shall develop in accordance with Article 19 of the basic Regulation certification specifications and guidance material to assist Member States in the implementation of this Section.

21B.20 Obligations of the competent authority

Each competent authority of the Member State is responsible for the implementation of Subparts F, G, H, I and P only for applicants, or holders, whose principal place of business is in its territory.

21B.25 Requirements for the organisation of the competent authority

(a) General:

The Member State shall designate a competent authority with allocated responsibilities for the implementation of Subparts F, G, H, I and P with documented procedures, organisation structure and staff.

(b) Resources:

1. The number of staff shall be sufficient to perform the allocated tasks.

2. The competent authority of the Member State shall appoint a manager, or managers, who are responsible for the execution of the related tasks within the authority, including the communication with the Agency and the other national authorities as appropriate.

(c) Qualification and training:

All staff shall be appropriately qualified and have sufficient knowledge, experience and training to perform their allocated task.

21B.30 Documented procedures

(a) The competent authority of the Member State shall establish documented procedures to describe its organisation, means and methods to fulfil the requirements of this Part. The procedures shall be kept up to date and serve as the basic working documents within that authority for all related activities.

(b) A copy of the procedures and their amendments shall be available to the Agency.

21B.35 Changes in organisation and procedures

(a) The competent authority of the Member State shall notify any significant change in its organisation and documented procedures to the Agency.

(b) The competent authority of the Member State shall update its documented procedures relating to any change to regulations in a timely manner to ensure effective implementation.

21B.40 Resolution of disputes

(a) The competent authority of the Member State shall establish a process for the resolution of disputes within its organisation documented procedures.

(b) Where a dispute, which cannot be resolved, exists between the competent authorities of the Member States it is the responsibility of the managers as defined in 21B.25(b)(2) to raise the issue with the Agency for mediation.

21B.45 Reporting/coordination

(a) The competent authority of the Member State shall ensure coordination as applicable with other related certification, investigation, approval or authorisation teams of that authority, other Member States and the Agency to ensure efficient exchange of information relevant for safety of the products, parts and appliances.

(b) The competent authority of the Member State shall notify any difficulty in the implementation of this Part to the Agency.

21B.55 Record keeping

The competent authority of the Member State shall keep, or maintain access to, the appropriate records related to the certificates, approvals and authorisations it has granted in accordance with the respective national regulations, and for which responsibility is transferred to the Agency, as long as these records have not been transferred to the Agency.
21B.60 Airworthiness directives

When the a competent authority of a Member State receives an airworthiness directive from the competent authority of a non-member State, that airworthiness directive shall be transferred to the Agency for dissemination in accordance with Article 20 of the basic Regulation.

SUBPART B TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

(SUBPART C — NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART D CHANGES TO TYPE-CERTIFICATES AND RESTRICTED TYPE-CERTIFICATES

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

SUBPART E SUPPLEMENTAL TYPE-CERTIFICATES

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

SUBPART F PRODUCTION WITHOUT PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

21B.120 Investigation

(a) The Competent Authority shall appoint an investigation team for each applicant for, or holder of, a letter of agreement to conduct all relevant tasks related to this letter of agreement, consisting of a team-leader to manage and lead the investigation team and, if required, one or more team members. The team-leader reports to the manager responsible for the activity, as defined in 21B.25 (b)(2).

(b) The Competent Authority shall perform sufficient investigation activities for an applicant for, or holder of, a letter of agreement to justify recommendations for the issuance, maintenance, amendment, suspension or revocation of the letter of agreement.

(c) The Competent Authority shall prepare procedures for the investigation of applicants for, or holders of, a letter of agreement as part of the documented procedures covering at least the following elements:

1. evaluation of applications received;

2. determination of investigation team;

3. investigation preparation and planning;

4. evaluation of the documentation (manual, procedures, etc.);

5. auditing and inspection;

6. follow up of corrective actions; and

7. recommendation for issuance, amendment, suspension or revocation of the letter of agreement.

21B.125 Findings

(a) When during audits or by other means objective evidence is found by the competent authority, showing non-compliance of the holder of a letter of agreement with the applicable requirements of Section A of this Part, this finding shall be classified in accordance with 21A.125B(a).

(b) The competent authority shall take the following actions:

1. for level 1 findings, immediate action shall be taken by the competent authority to limit, suspend or revoke the letter of agreement in whole or in part, depending upon the extent of the finding, until successful corrective action has been completed by the organisation;

2. for level 2 findings, the competent authority shall grant a corrective action period appropriate to the nature of the finding that shall not be more than 3 months. In certain circumstances, at the end of this period and subject to the nature of the finding, the competent authority can extend the 3 months period subject to a satisfactory corrective action plan.

(c) Action shall be taken by the competent authority to suspend the letter of agreement in whole or in part in case of failure to comply within the timescale granted by the competent authority.

21B.130 Issue of letter of agreement

(a) When satisfied that the manufacturer is in compliance with the applicable requirements of Section A, Subpart F, the Competent Authority shall issue a letter of agreement to the showing of conformity of individual products, parts or appliances (EASA Form 65, see Appendix) without undue delay.

(b) The letter of agreement shall contain the scope of the agreement, a termination date and, where applicable, the appropriate limitations relating to the authorisation.

(c) The duration of the letter of agreement shall not exceed one year.

21B.135 Maintenance of the letter of agreement

The Competent Authority shall maintain the letter of agreement as long as:

(a) The manufacturer is properly using the EASA Form 52 (see Appendix) as a Statement of Conformity for complete aircraft, and the EASA Form 1 (see Appendix) for products other than complete aircraft, parts and appliances;

(b) Inspections performed by the Competent Authority of the Member State before validation of the EASA Form 52 (see Appendix) or the EASA Form 1 (see Appendix), as per 21A.130(c) and did not reveal any findings of non-compliance against the requirements or the procedures

as contained in the manual provided by the manufacturer, or against the conformity of the respective products, parts or appliances. These inspections shall check at least that:

1. The agreement covers the product, part or appliance being validated, and remains valid;

2. The manual described in 21A.125A(b) and its change status referred in the letter of agreement is used as basic working document by the manufacturer. Otherwise, the inspection shall not continue and therefore the release certificates shall not be validated;

3. Production has been carried out under the conditions prescribed in the letter of agreement and satisfactorily performed;

4. Inspections and tests (including flight tests, if appropriate), as per 21A.130(b)(2) and/or (b)(3), have been carried out under the condition prescribed in the letter of agreement and satisfactorily performed;

5. The inspections by the Competent Authority described or addressed in the letter of agreement have been performed and found acceptable;

6. The statement of conformity complies with 21A.130, and the information provided by it does not prevent its validation; and

(c) Any termination date for the letter of agreement has not been reached.

21B.140 Amendment of a letter of agreement

(a) The Competent Authority shall investigate, as appropriate, in accordance with 21B.120 any amendment of the letter of agreement.

(b) When the Competent Authority is satisfied that the requirements of Section A, Subpart F continue to be complied with it shall amend the letter of agreement accordingly.

21B.145 Suspension and revocation of a letter of agreement

(a) The limitation, suspension or revocation of the letter of agreement shall be communicated in writing to the holder of the letter of agreement. The Competent Authority shall state the reasons for the limitation, suspension or revocation and inform the holder of the letter of agreement on its right to appeal.

(b) When a letter of agreement has been suspended it shall only be reinstated after compliance with Section A, Subpart F has been re-established.

21B.150 Record keeping

(a) The Competent Authority shall establish a system of record keeping that allows adequate traceability of the process to issue, maintain, amend, suspend or revoke each individual letter of agreement.

(b) The records shall at least contain:

1. the documents provided by the applicant for, or holder of, a letter of agreement,

2. documents established during investigation and inspection, in which the activities and the final results of the elements defined in 21B.120 are stated,

3. the letter of agreement, including its changes and amendments, and

4. minutes of the meetings with the manufacturer.

(c) The records shall be archived for a minimum retention period of six years after termination of the letter of agreement.

(d) The Competent Authority shall also maintain records of all Statements of Conformity (EASA Form 52, see Appendix) and Authorised Release Certificates (EASA Form 1, see Appendix) that it has validated.

SUBPART G PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

21B.220 Investigation

(a) The Competent Authority shall appoint a production organisation approval team for each applicant, or holder of, a production organisation approval to conduct all relevant tasks related to this production organisation approval, consisting of a team leader to manage and lead the approval team and, if required, one or more team members. The team leader reports to the manager responsible for the activity as defined in 21B.25(b)(2).

(b) The Competent Authority shall perform sufficient investigation activities for an applicant for, or holder of, a production organisation approval to justify recommendations for the issuance, maintenance, amendment, suspension or revocation of the approval.

(c) The Competent Authority shall prepare procedures for the investigation of a production organisation approval as part of the documented procedures covering at least the following elements:

- 1. evaluation of applications received;
- 2. determination of production organisation approval team;
- 3. investigation preparation and planning;
- 4. evaluation of the documentation (production organisation exposition, procedures, etc.);
- 5. auditing;
- 6. follow up of corrective actions;

7. recommendation for issuance, amendment, suspension or revocation of production organisation approval;

8. continued surveillance.

21B.225 Notification of findings

(a) When objective evidence is found showing non compliance of the holder of a production organisation approval with the applicable requirements of Section A of this Part, this finding shall be classified in accordance with 21A.158(a).

(b) The competent authority shall take the following actions:

1. for level 1 findings, immediate action shall be taken by the competent authority to limit, suspend or revoke the letter of agreement in whole or in part, depending upon the extent of the finding, until successful corrective action has been completed by the organisation;

2. for level 2 findings, the competent authority shall grant a corrective action period appropriate to the nature of the finding that shall not be more than 3 months. In certain circumstances, at the end of this period and subject to the nature of the finding, the competent authority can extend the 3 months period subject to a satisfactory corrective action plan.

(c) Action shall be taken by the competent authority to suspend the approval in whole or in part in case of failure to comply within the timescale granted by the competent authority.

21B.230 Issue of certificate

(a) When satisfied that the production organisation is in compliance with the applicable requirements of Section A, Subpart G, the Competent Authority shall issue a Production Organisation Approval (EASA Form 55, see Appendix) without undue delay.

(b) The reference number shall be included on the EASA Form 55 in a manner specified by the Agency.

21B.235 Continued surveillance

(a) In order to justify the maintenance of the production organisation approval the Competent Authority competent authority shall perform continued surveillance:

1. to verify that the production organisation approval holder's quality system still complies with Section A, Subpart G;

2. to verify that the organisation of the production organisation approval holder operates in accordance with the production organisation exposition;

3. to verify the effectiveness of the production organisation exposition procedures;

4. to monitor by sample the standards of the product, part or appliance.

(b) Continued surveillance shall be performed in accordance with 21B.220.

(c) The Competent Authority shall provide through planned continued surveillance that a production organisation approval is completely reviewed for compliance with this Part during a period of 24 months. The continued surveillance may be made up of several investigation activities during this period. The number of audits may vary depending upon the complexity of the organisation, the number of sites and the criticality of the production. As a minimum the holder of a production organisation approval shall be subject to continued surveillance activity by the Competent Authority at least once every year.

21B.240 Amendment of a production organisation approval

(a) The Competent Authority shall monitor any minor change through the continued surveillance activities.

(b) The Competent Authority shall investigate as appropriate in accordance with 21B.220 any significant change of a production organisation approval or application by the holder of a production organisation approval for an amendment of the scope and terms of approval.

(c) When the Competent Authority is satisfied that the requirements of Section A, Subpart G continue to be complied with it shall amend the production organisation approval accordingly.

21B.245 Suspension and revocation of a production organisation approval

(a) In case of a level one or level two finding, the Competent Authority shall partly or fully limit, suspend or revoke a production organisation approval as follows:

1. In case of a level one finding the production organisation approval shall be immediately limited or suspended. If the holder of the production organisation approval fails to comply with 21A.158(c)(1), the production organisation approval shall be revoked.

2. In case of a level two finding, the Competent Authority shall decide on any restriction to the scope of approval by temporary suspension of the production organisation approval or parts thereof. If the holder of a production organisation approval fails to comply with 21A.158(c)(2), the production organisation approval shall be revoked.

(b) The limitation, suspension or revocation of the production organisation approval shall be communicated in writing to the holder of the production organisation approval. The Competent Authority shall state the reasons for the suspension or revocation and inform the holder of the production organisation approval on its right to appeal.

(c) When a production organisation approval has been suspended it shall only be reinstated after compliance with Section A, Subpart G has been re-established.

21B.260 Record keeping

(a) The Competent Authority shall establish a system of record keeping that allows adequate traceability of the process to issue, maintain, amend, suspend or revoke each individual production organisation approval.

(b) The records shall at least contain:

1. the documents provided by the applicant for, or holder of, a production organisation approval certificate,

2. documents established during the investigation, in which the activities and the final results of the elements defined in 21B.220 are stated, including findings established in accordance with 21B.225

3. the continued surveillance programme, including records of investigations performed

4. the production organisation approval certificate, including changes and amendments

5. minutes of the meetings with the holder of the production organisation approval.

(c) The records shall be archived for a minimum retention period of six years.

SUBPART H AIRWORTHINESS CERTIFICATE AND RESTRICTED CERTIFICATE OF AIRWORTHINESS

21B.320 Investigation

(a) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall perform sufficient investigation activities for an applicant for, or holder of, an airworthiness certificate to justify the issuance, maintenance, amendment, suspension or revocation of the certificate or permit.

(b) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall prepare evaluation procedures covering at least the following elements:

1. evaluation of eligibility of the applicant;

2. evaluation of the eligibility of the application;

3. classification of airworthiness certificates;

4. evaluation of the documentation received with the application;

5. inspection of aircraft;

6. determination of necessary conditions, restrictions or limitations to the airworthiness certificates.

21B.325 Issue of airworthiness certificates

(a) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall issue or change a Certificate of Airworthiness (EASA Form 25, see Appendix) without undue delay when it is satisfied that the requirements of point 21B.326 and the applicable requirements of Section A of Subpart H of this Annex (Part 21) are met.

(b) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall issue or change a Restricted Certificate of Airworthiness (EASA Form 24, see Appendix) without undue delay when it is satisfied that requirements of point 21B.327 and the applicable requirements of Section A of Subpart H of this Annex (Part 21) are met.

(c) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall issue not only appropriate Certificate of Airworthiness of (a) and (b), but also Certificate of Airworthiness for new aircraft or used aircraft originating in a State that is not the Member State (EASA Form 15a, see Appendix).

21B.326 Certificate of airworthiness

The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall issue a certificate of airworthiness for:

(a) new aircraft:

1. upon presentation of the documentation required by point 21A.174(b)(2);

2. when the competent authority of the Member State of registry is satisfied that the aircraft conforms to an approved design and is in a condition for safe operation. This may include inspections by the competent authority of the Member State of registry;

(b) used aircraft:

upon presentation of the documentation required by point 21A.174(b)(3) demonstrating that:
 (i) the aircraft conforms to a type design approved under a type-certificate and any supplemental type-certificate, change or repair approved in accordance with Annex (Part 21); and

(ii) the applicable airworthiness directives have been complied with; and

(iii) the aircraft has been inspected in accordance with the applicable provisions of Annex I (Part M) of Regulation (EC) No 2042/2003;

2. when the competent authority of the Member State of registry is satisfied that the aircraft conforms to an approved design and is in a condition for safe operation. This may include inspections by the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

21B.327 Restricted certificate of airworthiness

(a) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall issue a restricted certificate of airworthiness for:

1. new aircraft:

(i) upon presentation of the documentation required by point 21A.174(b)(2);

(ii) when the competent authority of the Member State of registry is satisfied that the aircraft conforms to a design approved by the Agency under a restricted type-certificate or in accordance with specific airworthiness specifications, and is in a condition for safe operation. This may include inspections by the competent authority of the Member State of registry;

2. used aircraft:

(i) upon presentation of the documentation required by point 21A.174(b)(3) demonstrating that:

(A) the aircraft conforms to a design approved by the Agency under a restricted type-certificate or in accordance with specific airworthiness specifications and any supplemental type-certificate change or repair approved in accordance this Part;

(B) the applicable airworthiness directives have been complied with;

(C) the aircraft has been inspected in accordance with the applicable provisions of Annex I (Part M) of Regulation (EC) No 2042/2003;

(ii) when the competent authority of the Member State of registry is satisfied that the aircraft conforms to the approved design and is in a condition for safe operation. This may include inspections by the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

(b) For an aircraft that cannot comply with the essential requirements referred to in the basic Regulation and which is not eligible for a restricted type-certificate, the Agency shall, as necessary to take account of deviations from these essential requirements:

1. issue and check compliance with specific airworthiness specifications ensuring adequate safety with regard to the intended use;

2. specify limitations for use of this aircraft.

(c) Limitations for use will be associated with restricted certificates of airworthiness, including airspace restrictions, as necessary to take account of deviations from essential requirements for airworthiness laid down in the basic Regulation.

21B.330 Suspension and revocation of airworthiness certificates and restricted certificate of airworthiness

(a) Upon evidence that any of the conditions specified in 21A.181(a) is not met, the competent authority of the Member State of registry shall suspend or revoke an airworthiness certificate.

(b) Upon issuance of the notice of suspension and revocation of a certificate of airworthiness or restricted certificate of airworthiness the competent authority of the Member State of registry shall state the reasons for the suspension or revocation and inform the holder of the certificate on its right to appeal.

21B.345 Record keeping

(a) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall establish a system of record keeping that allows adequate traceability of the process to issue, maintain, amend, suspend or revoke each individual airworthiness certificate.

(b) The records shall at least contain:

1. the documents provided by the applicant,

2. documents established during the investigation, in which the activities and the final results of the elements defined in 21B.320(b) are stated,

3. a copy of the certificate or permit, including changes and amendments.

(c) The records shall be archived for a minimum retention period of six years after leaving that national register.

SUBPART I NOISE CERTIFICATES

21B.420 Investigation

(a) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall perform sufficient investigation activities for an applicant for, or holder of, a noise certificate to justify the issuance, maintenance, amendment, suspension or revocation of the certificate.

(b) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall prepare evaluation procedures as part of the documented procedures covering at least the following elements:

- 1. evaluation of eligibility;
- 2. evaluation of the documentation received with the application;
- 3. inspection of aircraft.

21B.425 Issue of noise certificates

The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall, as applicable, issue, or amend noise certificates (EASA Form 45, see Appendix) without undue delay when it is satisfied that the applicable requirements of Section A, Subpart I are met.

21B.430 Suspension and revocation of a noise certificate

(a) Upon evidence that some of the conditions specified in 21A.211(a) are not met, the competent authority of the Member State of registry shall suspend or revoke a noise certificate.

(b) Upon issuance of the notice of suspension and revocation of a noise certificate the competent authority of the Member State of registry shall state the reasons for the suspension and revocation and shall inform the holder of the certificate on its right to appeal.

21B.445 Record keeping

(a) The competent authority of the Member State of registry shall establish a system of record keeping with minimum retention criteria that allows adequate traceability of the process to issue, maintain, amend, suspend or revoke each individual noise certificate.

(b) The records shall at least contain:

1. the documents provided by the applicant,

2. documents established during the investigation, in which the activities and the final results of the elements defined in 21B.420(b) are stated,

3. a copy of the certificate including changes and amendments.

(c) The records shall be archived for a minimum retention period of six years after leaving that national register.

SUBPART J DESIGN ORGANISATION APPROVAL

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

SUBPART K PARTS AND APPLIANCES

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

(SUBPART L — NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART M REPAIRS

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

(SUBPART N — NOT APPLICABLE)

SUBPART O EUROPEAN TECHNICAL STANDARD ORDER AUTHORISATIONS

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

SUBPART P PERMIT TO FLY

21B.520 Investigation

(a) The Competent Authority shall perform sufficient investigation activities to justify the issuance or revocation of the permit to fly.

(b) The Competent Authority shall prepare evaluation procedures covering at least the following elements:

- 1. evaluation of the eligibility of the applicant;
- 2. evaluation of the eligibility of the application;
- 3. evaluation of the documentation received with the application;
- 4. inspection of the aircraft;
- 5. approval of the flight conditions in accordance with 21A.710(b).

21B.525 Issue of permits to fly

The competent authority shall issue a permit to fly (EASA Form 20a, see Appendix) without undue delay:

- 1. upon presentation of the data required by point 21A.707;
- 2. when the flight conditions referred to in point 21A.708 have been approved in accordance with point 21A.710;
- 3. when the competent authority, through its own investigations, which may include inspections, or through procedures agreed with the applicant, is satisfied that the aircraft conforms to the design defined under point 21A.708 before flight.

21B.530 Revocation of permits to fly

(a) Upon evidence that any of the conditions specified in 21A.723(a) are not met for a permit to fly it has issued, the Competent Authority shall revoke that permit to fly.

(b) Upon issuance of the notice of revocation of a permit to fly the Competent Authority shall state the reasons for the revocation and inform the holder of the permit to fly on the right to appeal.

21B.545 Record keeping

(a) The Competent Authority shall operate a system of record keeping that provides adequate traceability of the process for the issue and revocation of each individual permit to fly.

(b) The records shall at least contain:

1. the documents provided by the applicant;

2. documents established during the investigation, in which the activities and the final results of the elements defined in 21B.520(b) are stated;

3. a copy of the permit to fly.

(c) The records shall be kept for a minimum of six years after the permit ceases to be valid.

SUBPART Q IDENTIFICATION OF PRODUCTS, PARTS AND APPLIANCES

Administrative procedures established by the Agency shall apply.

Appendices

EASA FORMS

When the Forms of this Annex are issued in a language other than English they shall include an English translation.

The EASA Forms referred to in the appendices to this Part shall have the following obligatory features. Member States shall ensure that the EASA Forms they issue are recognisable and shall be responsible for having those Forms printed.

- Appendix I EASA Form 1 Authorised release Certificate
- Appendix II EASA Form 15a Airworthiness Review Certificate
- Appendix III EASA Form 20a Permit to Fly
- Appendix IV EASA Form 20b Permit to Fly (issued by approved organisations)
- Appendix V EASA Form 24 Restricted Certificate of Airworthiness
- Appendix VI EASA Form 25 Certificate of Airworthiness
- Appendix VII EASA Form 45 Noise Certificate
- Appendix VIII EASA Form 52 Aircraft Statement of Conformity
- Appendix IX EASA Form 53 Certificate of Release to Service
- Appendix X EASA Form 55 Production Organisation Approval Certificate
- Appendix XI EASA Form 65 Letter of Agreement [Production without POA]

Appendix I - Authorised Release Certificate – EASA Form 1 referred to in Annex (Part 21)

1. Надлежни орган/Држава Approving Compentent Authority/Country		V K H P H H H I I I I P H VI H I II I VI KA VI II I I P H H V				 Референтни број обрасца / Form Tracking Number 		
			EASA FORM 1					
4. Назив и адреса opraнизације/Organisation Name and Address							налог/уговор/рачун / n/Contract/Invoice	
6.Елемент /Item	7. Опис/Descriptio	n	8. Број дела/Part No.	9. Количина/Qty	Количина/Qty 10. Серијски број/Serial N		11. Статус/Рад/Status/Work	
12. Напомене/Remarks								
13a. Потврђује да су горе наведени елементи произведени сагласно: Certifies that the items were manufactured in conformity to:				14а. Спремност за употребу по Делу 145.А.50 Остали прописи наведени у рубрици 12 Part-145.A.50 Release to Service Other regulation specified in block 12				
одобреним пројектним подацима и да су спремни да се безбедно користе approved design data and are in condition for safe operation								
неодобреним пројектним подацима наведеним у рубрици 12 non-approved design data specified in block 12				block 12, was accomplish	Certifies that unless otherwise specified in block 12, the work identified in block 11 and described in block 12, was accomplished in accordance with Part-145 and in respect to that work the items are considered ready for release to service.			
13b. Потпис овлашћеног лица/Authorised Signature 13c. Број дозволе/овлашћења Approval/Authorisation Number			14b. Потпис овлашћено Signature	14b. Потпис овлашћеног лица/Authorised14c. Реф. број дозволе организације/SignatureCertificate/Approval Ref. No.				
13d. Име/Name 13e. Датум (датум/месец/година)/Date (d/m/y)			14d. Име/Name	1-	4е. Датум (д	атум/месец/година)/Date (d/m/y)		
ОДГОВОРНОСТ КОРИСНИКА/УГРАД USER / INSTALLER RESPONSIBILITIE 1. Уверење аут The certificate does not automatically cons	томатски не представља		радњу елемента.					
2. Кад корисник/уградитељ ради сагласно прописима органа надлежног за пловидбеност који се разликује од органа надлежног за пловидбеност из рубрике 1, корисник/уградитељ обезбеђује да његов орган надлежна за пловидбеност одобри елементе које је потврдио орган надлежан за пловидбеност из рубрике 1. Where the user/installer performs works in accordance with the regulations of an airworthiness authority different from the airworthiness authority specified in block 1, it is essential that the user/installer ensures that his/her airworthiness authority accepts items from the airworthiness authority specified block 1.								
3. Изјаве из рубрика 13a и 14a не представљају одобрење за уградњу. У сваком случају, документација о одржавању ваздухоплова мора да садржи одобрење за уградњу које корисник/уградитељ издаје сагласно национа прописима, пре него што ваздухоплов буде могао да се користи за летење. Statements in blocks 13a and 14a do not constitute installation certification. In all cases the aircraft maintenance record must contain an installation certification issued in accordance with the national regulations by the user/installer before the aircraft may be								
EASA Образац 1-21 - издање 2 / EASA Form	1-21 - Issue 2							

Instructions for the use of EASA Form 1

These instructions relate only to the use of the EASA Form 1 for production purposes. Attention is drawn to Appendix II to Annex I (Part-145) of Regulation (EC) No 2042/2003 which covers the use of the EASA Form 1 for maintenance purposes.

1. PURPOSE AND USE

- 1.1. A primary purpose of the certificate is to declare the airworthiness of new aviation products, parts and appliances (hereafter referred to as "item(s)").
- 1.2. Correlation must be established between the certificate and the item(s). The originator must retain a certificate in a form that allows verification of the original data.
- 1.3. The certificate is acceptable to many airworthiness authorities, but may be dependent on bilateral agreements and/or the policy of the airworthiness authority. The "approved design data" mentioned in this certificate then means approved by the airworthiness authority of the importing country.
- 1.4. The certificate is not a delivery or shipping note.
- 1.5. Aircraft are not to be released using the certificate.
- 1.6. The certificate does not constitute approval to install the item on a particular aircraft, engine, or propeller but helps the end user determine its airworthiness approval status.
- 1.7. A mixture of production released and maintenance released items is not permitted on the same certificate.
- 1.8. A mixture of items certified in conformity with "approved data" and to "non-approved data" is not permitted on the same certificate.

2. GENERAL FORMAT

- 2.1. The certificate must comply with the format attached including block numbers and the location of each block. The size of each block may however be varied to suit the individual application, but not to the extent that would make the certificate unrecognisable.
- 2.2. The certificate must be in "landscape" format but the overall size may be significantly increased or decreased so long as the certificate remains recognisable and legible. If in doubt consult the competent authority.
- 2.3. The User/Installer responsibility statement can be placed on either side of the form.
- 2.4. All printing must be clear and legible to permit easy reading.

- 2.5. The certificate may either be pre-printed or computer generated but in either case the printing of lines and characters must be clear and legible and in accordance with the defined format.
- 2.6. The certificate should be in English, and if appropriate, in one or more other languages.
- 2.7. The details to be entered on the certificate may be either machine/computer printed or hand-written using block letters and must permit easy reading.
- 2.8. Limit the use of abbreviations to a minimum, to aid clarity.
- 2.9. The space remaining on the reverse side of the certificate may be used by the originator for any additional information but must not include any certification statement. Any use of the reverse side of the certificate must be referenced in the appropriate block on the front side of the certificate.

3. COPIES

3.1. There is no restriction in the number of copies of the certificate sent to the customer or retained by the originator.

4. ERRORS ON A CERTIFICATE

- 4.1. If an end-user finds an error on a certificate, he must identify it in writing to the originator. The originator may issue a new certificate if they can verify and correct the error.
- 4.2. The new certificate must have a new tracking number, signature and date.
- 4.3. The request for a new certificate may be honoured without re-verification of the items condition. The new certificate is not a statement of current condition and should refer to the previous certificate in block 12 by the following statement: "This certificate corrects the error(s) in block(s) [enter block(s) corrected] of the certificate [enter original tracking number] dated [enter original issuance date] and does not cover conformity/condition/release to service". Both certificates should be retained according to the retention period associated with the first.

5. COMPLETION OF THE CERTIFICATE BY THE ORIGINATOR

Block 1 Approving competent authority/Country

State the name and country of the competent authority under whose jurisdiction this certificate is issued. When the Competent Authority is the Agency, only "EASA" must be stated.

Block 2 EASA Form 1 header

AUTHORISED RELEASE CERTIFICATE EASA FORM 1

Block 3 Form Tracking Number

Enter the unique number established by the numbering system/procedure of the organisation identified in block 4; this may include alpha/numeric characters.

Block 4 Organisation Name and Address

Enter the full name and address of the production organisation (refer to EASA Form 55 Sheet A) releasing the item(s) covered by this certificate. Logos etc. of the organisation are permitted if they can be contained within the block.

Block 5 Work Order/Contract/Invoice

To facilitate customer traceability of the item(s), enter the work order number, contract number, invoice number, or similar reference number.

Block 6 Item

Enter line item numbers when there is more than one line item. This block permits easy cross-referencing to the Remarks block 12.

Block 7 Description

Enter the name or description of the item. Preference should be given to the term used in the instructions for continued airworthiness or maintenance data (e.g. Illustrated Parts Catalogue, Aircraft Maintenance Manual, Service Bulletin, Component Maintenance Manual).

Block 8 Part Number

Enter the part number as it appears on the item or tag/packaging. In case of an engine or propeller the type designation may be used.

Block 9 Quantity

State the quantity of items.

Block 10 Serial Number

If the item is required by regulation to be identified with a serial number, enter it here. Additionally, any other serial number not required by regulation may also be entered. If there is no serial number identified on the item, enter "N/A".

Block 11 Status/Work

Enter either "PROTOTYPE" or "NEW".

Enter "PROTOTYPE" for:

- (i) The production of a new item in conformity with non-approved design data.
- (ii) Re-certification by the organisation identified in block 4 of the previous certificate after alteration or rectification work on an item, prior to entry into service, (e.g. after incorporation of a design change, correction of a defect, inspection or test, or renewal of

shelf-life.) Details of the original release and the alteration or rectification work are to be entered in block 12.

Enter "NEW" for:

- (i) The production of a new item in conformity with the approved design data.
- (ii) Re-certification by the organisation identified in block 4 of the previous certificate after alteration or rectification work on an item, prior to entry into service, (e.g. after incorporation of a design change, correction of a defect, inspection or test, or renewal of shelf-life.) Details of the original release and the alteration or rectification work are to be entered in block 12.
- (iii) Re-certification by the product manufacturer or the organisation identified in block 4 of the previous certificate of items from "prototype" (conformity only to non-approved data) to "new" (conformity to approved data and in a condition for safe operation), subsequent to approval of the applicable design data, provided that the design data has not changed. The following statement must be entered in block 12:

RE-CERTIFICATION OF ITEMS FROM "PROTOTYPE" TO "NEW": THIS DOCUMENT CERTIFIES THE APPROVAL OF THE DESIGN DATA [INSERT TC/STC NUMBER, REVISION LEVEL], DATED [INSERT DATE IF NECESSARY FOR IDENTIFICATION OF REVISION STATUS], TO WHICH THIS ITEM WAS MANUFACTURED.

The box "approved design data and are in a condition for safe operation" should be marked in block 13a.

(iv) The examination of a previously released new item prior to entry into service in accordance with a customer-specified standard or specification (details of which and of the original release are to be entered in block 12) or to establish airworthiness (an explanation of the basis of release and details of the original release are to be entered in block 12).

Block 12 Remarks

Describe the work identified in block 11, either directly or by reference to supporting documentation, necessary for the user or installer to determine the airworthiness of item(s) in relation to the work being certified. If necessary, a separate sheet may be used and referenced from the EASA Form 1. Each statement must clearly identify which item(s) in block 6 it relates to. If there is no statement, state "None".

Enter the justification for release to non-approved design data in block 12 (e.g. pending type-certificate, for test only, pending approved data).

If printing the data from an electronic EASA Form 1 any data not appropriate in other blocks should be entered in this block.

Block 13a

Mark only one of the two boxes:

- 1. Mark the 'approved design data and are in a condition for safe operation' box if the item was manufactured using approved design data and found to be in a condition for safe operation.
- 2. Mark the 'non-approved design data specified in block 12' box if the item was manufactured using applicable non-approved design data. Identify the data in block 12 (e.g. pending type-certificate, for test only, pending approved data).

Mixtures of items released against approved and non-approved design data are not permitted on the same certificate.

Block 13b Authorised Signature

This space shall be completed with the signature of the authorised person. Only persons specifically authorised under the rules and policies of the competent authority are permitted to sign this block. To aid recognition, a unique number identifying the authorised person may be added.

Block 13c Approval/Authorisation Number

Enter the approval/authorisation number/reference. This number or reference is issued by the competent authority.

Block 13d Name

Enter the name of the person signing block 13b in a legible form.

Block 13e Date

Enter the date on which block 13b is signed, the date must be in the format dd = 2 digit day, mmm = first 3 letters of the month, yyyy = 4 digit year.

Block 14a-14e

General Requirements for blocks 14a-14e:

Not used for production release. Shade, darken, or otherwise mark to preclude inadvertent or unauthorised use.

User/Installer Responsibilities

Place the following statement on the certificate to notify end users that they are not relieved of their responsibilities concerning installation and use of any item accompanied by the form:

"THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AUTOMATICALLY CONSTITUTE AUTHORITY TO INSTALL. WHERE THE USER/INSTALLER PERFORMS WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATIONS OF AN AIRWORTHINESS AUTHORITY DIFFERENT THAN THE AIRWORTHINESS AUTHORITY SPECIFIED IN BLOCK 1, IT IS ESSENTIAL THAT THE USER/INSTALLER ENSURES THAT HIS/HER AIRWORTHINESS AUTHORITY ACCEPTS ITEMS FROM THE AIRWORTHINESS AUTHORITY SPECIFIED IN BLOCK 1.STATEMENTS IN BLOCKS 13A AND 14A DO NOT CONSTITUTE INSTALLATION CERTIFICATION. IN ALL CASES AIRCRAFT MAINTENANCE RECORDS MUST CONTAIN AN INSTALLATION CERTIFICATION ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NATIONAL REGULATIONS BY THE USER/INSTALLER BEFORE THE AIRCRAFT MAY BE FLOWN."

TE екторат цивилног ваздухоплова ic of Serbia hereby certifies that the following aircraft:
ic of Serbia hereby certifies that the following aircraft:
ic of Serbia hereby certifies that the following aircraft:
жења:
жења:
жења:
жења:
ла тачки М.А.901 Анекса I Ур повидбеним у време издавања. ion (EC) 2042/2003 for the last year. The aircraft is consid
жења:
ма тачки М.А.901 Анекса I Ур. повидбеним у време издавања. tion (EC) 2042/2003 for the last year. The aircraft is consid
жења:

Appendix II – Airworthiness Review Certificate – EASA Form 15a

EASA Образац 15а - издање 3 / EASA Form 15а- Issue 3

Додатак III – Permit to Fly – EASA Form 20a

	ВАЗДУХОПЛОВСТВА РЕПУБЛИКЕ СРБИЈЕ ATE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SERBIA						
ДОЗВО Л	ДОЗВОЛА ЗА ЛЕТ						
PERMIT TO FLY							
Ова дозвола за лет је издата према члану 5(4) Уредбе (ЕЗ) бр 216/2008 и њоме се потврђује да је ваздухоплов способан да безбедно лети у сврхе и под условима наведеним у њој и важи у државама чланицама. This permit to fly is issued pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 216/2008 article 5(4) and certifies that the aircraft is capable of safe flight for the purpose and within the conditions listed below and is valid in all M ember States. Ова дозвола важи и за лет до и унутар држава које нису државе чланице на основу одобрења надлежног органа ових држава. This permit is also valid for flight to and within non-Member States provided separate approval is obtained from the competent authorities of such States.	1. Знаци државне припадности и ознака регистрације ваздухоплова: Nationality and registration marks:						
2. Произвођач ваздухоплова/тип: Aircraft manufacturer/type:	3. Серијски број ваздухоплова: Serial No:						
4. Дозвола обухвата [сврха према тачки 21А.701(a)]: The permit covers: [purpose in accordance with point 21А.701(a)]	I						
5. Ималац [ако је дозвола за лет издата у сврхе из тачке 21А.701 Holder: [in case permit to fly issued for the purpose of 21А.701(a)							
6. Услови/напомене: Conditions/Remarks:							
7. Време важења: Validity period:							
8. Место и датум издавања: Place and date of issue:	9. Потпис овлашћеног лица: Signature of the competent authority representative:						

EASA образац 20a / EASA Form 20a

Република Србија Republic of Serbia

ДОЗВОЛА ЗА ЛЕТ PERMIT TO FLY

Назив и адреса организације која издаје дозволу за лет: Name and address of the organisation issuing the permit to fly:	(*)
Ова дозвола је издата према члану 5(4) Уредбе (E3) бр 216/2008 и њоме се потврђује да је ваздухоплов способан да безбедно лети у сврхе и под условима наведеним у њој и важи у државама чланицама. This permit to fly is issued pursuant to to Regulation (EC) No	 Знаци државне припадности и ознака регистрације ваздухоплова: Nationality and registration marks:
216/2008 article 5(4) and certifies that the aircraft is capable of safe flight for the purpose and within the conditions listed below and is valid in all Member States.	
Ова дозвола важи и за лет до и унутар држава које нису државе чланице на основу одобрења надлежног органа ових држава.	
This permit is also valid for flight to and within non-Member States provided separate approval is obtained from the competent authorities of such States.	
2. Произвођач ваздухоплова/тип: Aircraft manufacturer/type:	3. Серијски број ваздухоплова: Serial No:
 Дозвола обухвата [сврха према тачки 21А.701(a)]: The permit covers: [purpose in accordance with 21A.701(a)] 	
5. Ималац: [организација која издаје дозволу за лет]	
Holder: [Organisation issuing the permit to fly]	
6. Услови/напомене :	
Conditions/remarks:	
7. Време важења: Validity period:	
8. Место и датум издавања: Place and date of issue:	9. Потпис овлашћеног лица Authorized Signature:
	Име: Name:
	Број под којим је дозвола заведена Approval Reference No:
EASA образац 206 / EASA Form 206	

(*) користи ималац дозволе за обављање делатности организације For use by Organisation Approval holder

Appendix V - Restricted Certificate of Airworthiness – EASA Form 24

ОГРАНИЧЕНА ПОТВРДА О ПЛОВИДБЕНОСТИ RESTRICTED CERTIFICATE OF AIRWORTHINESS

Број улошка у Регистру ваздухоплова о Aircraft Register, Airworthiness Insert number	ДИРЕКТОРАТ ЦИВИЛНОГ ВАЗДУХОПЛОВСТВА РЕПУБЛИК CIVIL AVIATION DIRECTORATE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SERB	Примењена правила пловидбености Соde			
 Државна припадност и и ознака регистрације Nationality and Registration marks 	2. Произвођач, назив, тип и модел ваздухоплова Manufacturer and Manufacturer's designation of aircraft	3. Серијски број ваздухоплова Aircraft serial number			
4. Kateropиje Categories					
 5. Ова потврда о пловидбености издата је према Конвенцији о међународном цивилном ваздухопловству од 7. децембра 1944. године и према члану 5 (4) (б) Уредбе (ЕЗ) бр. 216/2008, за горе наведени ваздухоплов који се сматра пловидбеним док се одржава и користи сагласно горе наведеним и одговарајућим оперативним ограничењима. This Certificate of Airworthiness is issued pursuant to the Convention on International Civil Aviation dated 7 December 1944 and Regulation (EC) No 216/2008, article 5(4)(b) in respect of the abovementioned aircraft which is considered to be airworthy when mainteined and operated in accordance with foregoing and pertinent operating limitations. Поред горе наведеног, важе следећа ограничења: In addition to above the following restrictions apply: 					
Ваздухоплов може да се користи у међународном саобраћају без обзира на горе наведена ограничења. The aircraft may be used in international navigation notwithstanding above restrictions					
Датум издавања: Date of issue:	Потпис: Signature:				
	ности важи док је Директорат цивилног ваздухопловства Републике Срби	је не стави ван снаге.			
This Certificate of Airworthiness is valid unless revoked by Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia. Овој потврди прилаже се важећа потврда о провери пловидбености. A currrent Airworthiness Review Certificate shall be attached to this Certificate.					
EASA Образац 24- издање 2 / EASA Form 24 - Issu	e 2				

This certificate shall be carried on board of aircraft during all flights

Appendix VI - Certificate of Airworthiness – EASA Form 25

ПОТВРДА О ПЛОВИДБЕНОСТИ CERTIFICATE OF AIRWORTHINESS

Број улошка у Примењена			правила			
Регистру ваздухоплова о	ДИРЕКТОРАТ ЦИВИЛНОГ ВАЗДУХОПЛОВСТВА РЕПУБЛИКЕ СРБИЈЕ CIVIL AVIATION DIRECTORATE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SERBIA		пловидбености			
Aircraft Register, Airworthiness			Code			
Insert number	CIVILAVIATION DIRECTORATE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SER	10177				
1. Државна припадност	2. Произвођач, назив, тип и модел ваздухоплова	1 2 1	ој ваздухоплова			
и ознака регистрације Nationality and Registration marks	Manufacturer and Manufacturer's designation of aircraft	Aircraft serial	number			
nanonany and negativation mana						
4. Категорије						
Categories						
5. Ова потврда о пловидбености издата је према Конвенцији о међународном цивилном ваздухопловству од 7. децембра 1944. године и према члану 5 (2) (ц) Уредбе (ЕЗ) бр. 216/2008, за горе наведени ваздухоплов који се сматра пловидбеним док се одржава и користи сагласно горе наведеним и						
(2) (ц) уредое (ЕЗ) ор. 216/2008, за горе наво одговарајућим оперативним ограничењима.	едени ваздухоплов који се сматра пловидоеним док се одржа	ава и користи са	агласно горе наведеним и			
This Certificate of Airworthiness is issued pursuant to the Convention on International Civil Aviation dated 7 December 1944 and Regulation (EC)No 216/2008, article 5(2)(c) in respect						
of the abovementioned aircraft which is considered to be airworthy when mainteined and operated in accordance with foregoing and pertinent operating limitations.						
Ограничења/напомене						
Limitations/Remark:						
Датум издавања:	Потпис:					
Date of issue:	Signature:					
1	иректорат цивилног ваздухопловства Републике Србије не ст	ави ван снаге.				
<i>This Certificate of Airworthiness is valid unless revoked by Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia.</i> Овој потврди прилаже се важећа потврда о провери пловидбености.						
A current Airworthiness Review Certificate shall be attached to this Certificate						
EASA Образац 25- издање 2 / EASA Form 25 - Issue 2						

This certificate shall be carried on board of aircraft during all flights

Appendix VII – Noise Certificate – EASA Form 45

		РДА О E certif	БУЦИ FICATE		Докумен Documen	
Ознаке регистрације в Registration marks :	аздухоплова:		jaч, назив, тип и модел urer and Manufacturer's		Серијски Aircraft N	
Morop: Engine:			Елиса: Propell			
Максимална маса на полетању: Maximum Take-Off Mass (kg)		Максимална маса на слетању: Maximum Landing Mass (kg) (*)			Стандард за буку: Noise Certification Standard	
		l for the pur	са одговарајућим станд pose of compliance with a Hиво буке прелет y пењању: Flyover Noise Level: (*)		ни	tion standards: Ниво буке на полетању: Take-Off Noise Level: (*)
1944. године и према стандардом за буку сви This Noise Certificate is 1944 and Regulation (1	нлану 6. Уредб е док се одржа <i>issued pursuan</i> EC) No 216/200	е (ЕЗ) бр. 2 ва и корист t to Annex 1 08, article 6	216/2008 и њоме се потв ги сагласно одговарајућ 6, Volume I to the Conven in respect of the abovem	рђује да је горе им захтевима и tion on Internatic entioned aircraft	наведени в оперативни onal Civil Av t which is c	повству од 7. децембра наздухоплов усклађен са м ограничењима. iation dated 7 December, onsidered to comply with and operating limitations.
Датум издавања Date of issue:				Потпис Signature:		

EASA образац 45 / EASA Form 45

 $\overline{(*)}$ These boxes may be omitted depending on Chapter of certification.

Appendix VIII – Aircraft Statement of Conformity - EASA Form 52

 Држава производње State of manufacture 	2. ДИРЕКТОРАТ ЦИВИЛНОГ ВАЗДУХОПЛОВСТВА РЕПУБЛИКЕ СРБИЈЕ CIVIL AVIATION DIRECTORATE OF THE REPUBLIC OF SERBIA		3. Број изјаве Statement Ref. No	
4. Организација Organisation				
5. Тип ваздухоплова Aircraft Type		6. Број потврде о типу: <i>Type-certificate Refs</i>		
7. Ознака регистрације или Aircraft Registration or Ma		8. Идентификациони број произвођача: Manufacturers Identification No		
 9. Подаци о мотору/елиси (Engine/Propeller Details 	***)	1		
10. Промене и/или сервисни Modifications and/or Serv				
11. Налози за пловидбеност Airworthiness Directives	,			
12. Концесије Concessions				
13. Изузеци, одрицања, одс Exemptions, Waivers or L				
14. Напомене Remarks				
15. Потврда о пловидбеност Certificate of Airworthiness	ги			
16. Допунски захтеви Additional Requirements				
 Изјава о усклађености Овим се потврђује да је ва рубрика 9, 10, 11, 12 и 13. 	здухоплов у потпуности уск.	пађен са одобреним п	пројектним подацима и подацима и	
Ваздухоплов је спреман да Ваздухоплов је задовољио и	-			
Statement of Conformity		pe-certificated design	and to the items above in boxes	
The aircraft is in condition of The aircraft has been satisfac				
18. Потпис Signed	19. Име <i>Name</i>		Цатум (дан/месец/година): Date (d/m/y)	
-	е за обављање делатности ор			

Instructions for the use of the Aircraft Statement of Conformity EASA Form 52

1. PURPOSE AND SCOPE

- 1.1. Use of the aircraft Statement of Conformity issued by a manufacturer producing under Part 21 Section A Subpart F is described under 21A.130 and the corresponding acceptable means of compliance.
- 1.2. The purpose of the aircraft Statement of Conformity (EASA Form 52) issued under Part 21 Section A Subpart G is to enable the holder of an appropriate production organisation approval to exercise the privilege to obtain an individual aircraft certificate of airworthiness from the competent authority of the Member State of registry.

2. GENERAL

- 2.1. The Statement of Conformity must comply with the format attached including block numbers and the location of each block. The size of each block may however be varied to suit the individual application, but not to the extent that would make the Statement of Conformity unrecognisable. If in doubt consult the competent authority.
- 2.2. The Statement of Conformity must either be pre-printed or computer generated but in either case the printing of lines and characters must be clear and legible. Pre-printed wording is permitted in accordance with the attached model but no other certification statements are permitted.
- 2.3. Completion may be either machine/computer printed or hand-written using block letters to permit easy reading. English, and where relevant, one or more of the official languages of the issuing Member State are acceptable.
- 2.4. A copy of the Statement and all referenced attachments are to be retained by the approved production organisation.

3. COMPLETION OF THE STATEMENT OF CONFORMITY BY THE ORIGINATOR

- 3.1. There should be an entry in all blocks to make the document a valid statement.
- 3.2. A Statement of Conformity may not be issued to the competent authority of the Member State of registry unless the design of the aircraft and its installed products are approved.
- 3.3. The information required in blocks 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 may be by reference to separate identified documents held on file by the production organisation, unless the competent authority agrees otherwise.
- 3.4. This Statement of Conformity is not intended to include those items of equipment that may be required to be fitted in order to satisfy applicable operational rules. However, some of these individual items may be included in block 10 or in the approved type

design. Operators are therefore reminded of their responsibility to ensure compliance with the applicable operational rules for their own particular operation.

Block 1

Enter name of the State of manufacture.

Block 2

The competent authority under which authority the Statement of Conformity is issued.

Block 3

A unique serial number should be pre-printed in this block for statement control and traceability purposes. Except that in the case of a computer generated document the number need not be pre-printed where the computer is programmed to produce and print a unique number.

Block 4

The full name and location address of the organisation issuing the statement. This block may be pre-printed. Logos etc. are permitted if the logo can be contained within the block.

Block 5

The aircraft type in full as defined in the type-certificate and its associated data sheet.

Block 6

The type-certificate reference numbers and issue for the subject aircraft.

Block 7

If the aircraft is registered then this mark will be the registration mark. If the aircraft is not registered then this will be such a mark that is accepted by the competent authority of the Member State and, if applicable, by the competent authority of a third country.

Block 8

The identification number assigned by the manufacturer for control and traceability and product support. This is sometimes referred to as a Manufacturers Serial No or Constructors No.

Block 9

The engine and propeller type in full as defined in the relevant type-certificate and its associated data sheet. Their manufacturer identification No and associated location should also be shown.

Block 10

Approved design changes to the aircraft definition.

Block 11

A listing of all applicable airworthiness directives (or equivalent) and a declaration of compliance, together with a description of the method of compliance on the subject individual aircraft including products and installed parts, appliances and equipment. Any future compliance requirement time should be shown.

Block 12

Approved unintentional deviation to the approved type design sometimes referred to as concessions, divergences, or non-conformances.

Block 13

Only agreed exemptions, waivers or derogations may be included here.

Block 14

Remarks. Any statement, information, particular data or limitation which may affect the airworthiness of the aircraft. If there is no such information or data, state; "NONE".

Block 15

Enter "Certificate of Airworthiness", or "Restricted Certificate of Airworthiness", or for the Certificate of Airworthiness requested.

Block 16

Additional requirements such as those notified by an importing country should be noted in this block.

Block 17

Validity of the Statement of Conformity is dependent on full completion of all blocks on the form. A copy of the flight test report together with any recorded defects and rectification details should be kept on file by the POA holder. The report should be signed as satisfactory by the appropriate certifying staff and a flight crew member, e.g. test pilot or flight test engineer. The flight tests performed are those defined under the control of the quality system, as established by 21A.139 in particular 21A.139(b)(1)(vi), to ensure that the aircraft conforms with the applicable design data and is in condition for safe operation.

The listing of items provided (or made available) to satisfy the safe operation aspects of this statement should be kept on file by the POA holder.

Block 18

The Statement of Conformity may be signed by the person authorised to do so by the production approval holder in accordance with 21A.145(d). A rubber stamp signature should not be used.

Block 19

The name of the person signing the certificate should be typed or printed in a legible form.

Block 20

The date the Statement of Conformity is signed should be given.

Block 21

The competent authority approval reference should be quoted.

Appendix IX - C	ertificate of Release	to Service – EASA Form 53
YBEPE		ГИ ЗА УПОТРЕБУ ВАЗДУХОПЛОВА S of release to service
	ЕНЕ ОРГАНИЗАЦИЈЕ З UCTION ORGANISATION I	
	бављање делатности орг tion approval reference:	анизације за производњу:
	ности за употребу вазду to service in accordance wi	хоплова сагласно је тачки 21А.163(д). th point 21А.163(d).
Ваздухоплов: Aircraft:		Број конструктора/регистрација: Constructor No/Registration:
	ито је наведено у радном pecified in Work Order:	и налогу број: has
Кратак опис извр Brief description of v		
Ποτεράνίο σο το ο		извршени према тачки 21А.163(д) и да се у односу њих
ваздухоплов смат Certifies that the wor	ра спремним за употреб rk specified was carried out i	извршени према тачки 21А.105(д) и да се у односу њих by и да је спреман да се безбедно користи. in accordance with point 21A.163(d) and in respect to that work vice and therefore is in a condition for safe operation.
Овлашћено лице: Certifying Staff (nam		
Потпис (Signature):		
Место Location:		
Датум: (д	ан, месец, година).	
	ay, month, year).	

CERTIFICATE OF RELEASE TO SERVICE - EASA FORM 53

COMPLETION INSTRUCTIONS

In the block "BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED" of the *EASA* form 53 shall be inserted approved data that are used for work performance.

In the block "LOCATION" of the *EASA* form 53 shall be inserted the locality of maintenance, not the locality where the organisation fascilities are situated (if different).

Appendix X - Production Organisation Approval Certificate referred to in Subpart G of Annex (Part 21) – *EASA* Form 55

РЕПУБЛИКА СРБИЈА ДИРЕКТОРАТ ЦИВИЛНОГ ВАЗДУХОПЛОВСТВА РЕПУБЛИКЕ СРБИЈЕ	УСЛОВИ ИЗ ДОЗВОЛЕ Terms of Approval	Број RS.21G.XXX				
Овај документ је део дозволе за обављање делатности организације за производњу број: RS.21G.XXX издате: This document is part of Production Organisation Approval Number RS.21G.XXX issued to: Назив организације: Company name:						
Секција 1. ОБИМ РАДОВА : Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK:						
ПРОИЗВОДЊА: PRODUCTION OF	ПРОИЗВОДИ / КАТЕ Products/categorie					
	ати приручник организације за производњу, imitations refer to the Production Organisation Expo	5				
Секција 2. MECTO: Section 2. LOCATIONS:						
Секција 3. ПРАВА: Section 3. PRIVILEGES :						
Организација за производњу овлашћена је да ради у оквиру услова из дозволе, поступака из приручника организације за производњу и правима датим у тачки 21A.163. Важе следећи услови: The Production Organisation is entitled to exercise, within its Terms of Approval and in accordance with the procedures of its Production Organisation Exposition, the privileges set forth in 21A.163. Subject to the following:						
[задржати само одговарајући текст]: [keep only applicable text]						
Пре одобрења пројекта производа, <i>EASA</i> образац 1 може да се изда само у сврху усклађености. <i>Prior to approval of the design of the product an EASA Form</i> 1 may be issued only for conformity purposes.						
5 5 7	Изјава о усклађености не може да се изда за ваздухоплов који није одобрен. A Statement of Conformity may not be issued for a non-approved aircraft.					
Одржавање се обавља док се захтева усклађеност са прописима о одржавању, према приручнику организације за производњу, Секција xxx Maintenance may be performed, until compliance with maintenance regulations is required, in accordance with the Production Organisation Exposition Section xxx						
Дозволе за лет могу да се издају према приручнику организације за производњу, Секција ууу Permits to fly may be issued accordance with the Production Organisation Exposition Section yyy						
Датум првобитног издавања: Date of original issue: Датум ове измене: Date of this revision:		Потпис: Signed:				
Измена број: <i>Revision No.:</i>	For the Civil 2	цивилног ваздухопловства Републике Србије Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia				

EASA образац 556 - издање 2 / EASA form 55b - Issue 2

Appendix XI – Letter of Agreement – EASA Form 65 referred to in Subpart G of Annex (Part 21)

Република Србија

Директорат цивилног ваздухопловства Републике Србије Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia

ПИСМО О САГЛАСНОСТИ ЗА ПРОИЗВОДЊУ БЕЗ ДОЗВОЛЕ ЗА ОБАВЉАЊЕ ДЕЛАТНОСТИ ОРГАНИЗАЦИЈЕ ЗА ПРОИЗВОДЊУ LETTER OF AGREEMENT FOR PRODUCTION WITHOUT PRODUCTION ORGANISATION APPROVAL

[HA3ИB ПОДНОСИОЦА ЗАХТЕВА] [NAME OF THE APPLICANT] [ПОСЛОВНО ИМЕ (ако се разликује)] [TRADE NAME (if different)] [ПУНА АДРЕСА ПОДНОСИОЦА ЗАХТЕВА] [FULLL ADDRESS OF THE APPLICANT] [ATYM / Date (Day, Month, Year) БРОЈ: RS. 21F.XXX REFERENCE: Поштовани, Dear Sirs,

Ваш систем контроле производње проверен је и оцењено је да је усклађен са Секцијом А, Одељак Ф Анекса (Део 21) Уредбе (ЕЗ) бр. 1702/2003.

Your production inspection system has been evaluated and found to be in compliance with Section A, Subprat F of the Annex (Part 21) of Regulation (EC) 1702/2003.

Сходно томе, сагласни смо да се, према доле наведеним условима, усклађеност доле наведених производа, делова и уређаја показује на основу Секције А, Одељак Ф Анекса (Део 21) Уредбе (ЕЗ) бр. 1702/2003.

Therefore, subject to the conditions specified below, we agree that showing of conformity of products, parts and appliances mentioned below may be done under Section A, Subpart F of the Annex (Part 21) of Regulation (EC) 1702/2003.

Број	Каталошки број	Серијски број
No of Units	P/N	S/N
ВАЗДУХОПЛОВ/AIRCRAFT		

ДЕЛОВИ/PARTS

На ову сагласност примењују се следећи услови:

The following conditions are applicable to this agreement:

 Важи док [назив организације] остане усклађена са Секцијом А, Одељак Ф Анекса (Део 21) Уредбе (ЕЗ) бр. 1702/2003.

It is valid whilst [Company name] remains in compliance with with Section A, Subpart F of the Annex (Part 21) of Regulation (EC) 1702/2003.

 Захтева се усклађеност са поступцима наведеним у приручнику [назив организације], реф/датум издања

This Letter of Agreement requires compliance with the procedures specified in the Production Manual Ref./ Issue date

Важење престаје ____

This Letter of Agreement terminates on

 Изјаву о усклађености коју је издала [назив организације], на основу тачке 21А.130 наведене уредбе оверава орган који је издао ово писмо о сагласности према поступку ______из горе наведеног приручника.

The Statement of conformity issued by [Company name] under the provisions of point 21A.130 abovementioned Regilation shall be validated by the issuing authority of this letter of agreement in accordance with the procedure ______ of the above referenced manual.

5. [назив организације] мора одмах да обавести орган који је издао ово писмо о сагласности о свакој промени свог система контроле производње која може да утиче на инспекцију, усклађеност или пловидбеност производа и делова наведених у овом писму.

[Company name] shall notify issuing authority of this letter of agreement immediately of any changes to the production inspection system that may affect the inspection, conformity or airworthiness of the products and parts listed in this letter.

За Директорат цивилног ваздухопловства Републике Србије:

For the Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia: Датум и потпис/Date and Signature

EASA образац 65 - издање 2 $\ /$ EASA form 65 - Issue 2